
           

  
 

City Council Regular Meeting
 

Thursday, June 9, 2022
6:00 p.m.

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

  



  
Our Vision
We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.

Our Brand
A safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that
connects people, chooses innovation and inspires
excellence.

Our Goals
City Council Strategic Policy Goals
1. Being the most connected City
2. Being a leader in trust and transparency
3. Maintaining fiscal sustainability
4. Attracting a range of private sector businesses
5. Fostering a contemporary culture that embraces unity
6. Being safe and beautiful

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a
REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Thursday, June 9, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council
Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may
attend this meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City
time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.

           

Page 2 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



           

Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Invocation - Fr. Robert Aliunzi, St. Andrew the Apostle 
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

City Clerk
 
 

1. May 2022 City Council Minutes
  Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of May

23, 2022; Study Session of May 23, 2022; Work Session of May 26, 2022; and Regular
Meeting of May 26, 2022.

 

 
Page 3 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



  Council Focus Area(s):
 

2. Board and Commission Appointments
  Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.
 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Communications and Public Affairs
 
 

3. Purchase of EditShare Equipment
  Move City Council approve the purchase of EditShare equipment, from EAR

Professional Audio Video, utilizing the 1GPA Contract No. 22-02PV-06, in the amount of
$71,987.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Cultural Development
 
 

4. Resolution No. 5589, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District

Page 4 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



4. Resolution No. 5589, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District
(EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-23 between the City of Chandler and the
Downtown Chandler Community Partnership, and authorizing the City's voluntary
contribution to the EMSD in the amount of $118,804.

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5589, authorizing the Enhanced
Municipal Services District (EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-23 between the
City of Chandler and the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership, and authorizing
the City's voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the amount of $118,804.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Economic Development
 
 

5. Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 4, with Simpleview, LLC, for
Search Engine Optimization and Pay Per Click Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 4, with
Simpleview, LLC, for search engine optimization and pay per click services, in an
amount not to exceed $75,200, for the period of one year, beginning July 1,
2022, through June 30, 2023.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Facilities and Fleet
 

Page 5 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



 

6. Maintenance, Repair, and Purchase of Doors, Locking Systems, Door Hardware,
and Operable Walls

  Move City Council approve the utilization of the Mohave Educational Services
Cooperative Contract No. 21H-DHP-0917, for maintenance, repairs, and purchase of
bay doors, locking systems, door hardware, and operable walls, from DH Pace
Company, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $126,764.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

7. Sole Source Purchase of Beam Global EV ARC 2020 Solar Powered EV Charging
Stations

  Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of two Beam Global EV ARC 2020
Solar Powered EV Charging Stations in an amount not to exceed $145,350.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Fire Department
 
 

8. Resolution No. 5587 First Amendment to Education Services Agreement between
the City of Chandler Fire Department and Dignity Health

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5587 approving a First Amendment
to Education Services Agreement between the City of Chandler Fire Department and
Dignity Health for paramedic neonatal resuscitation educational services.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 6 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



Information Technology
 
 

9. Purchase of Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) System Annual Support and
Maintenance

  Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of Enterprise Asset Management
(EAM) system annual support and maintenance, from CentralSquare Technologies,
LLC, in the amount of $101,474, for the term of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

10. Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance
  Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and maintenance,

from Mythics, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No. 180233-002, in the amount of
$300,171, for the term of August 1, 2022, through July 31, 2023.  

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

11. Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 1, for Business License Portal
Applications Managed Support Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 1, with
Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business license portal applications managed support
services, in the amount of $222,000, for the period of June 15, 2022, through June 14,
2023.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

12. Purchase of Network Infrastructure Equipment
  Move City Council approve the purchase of network infrastructure equipment, from

Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 22-02PV-18, in an
amount not to exceed $1,196,037, and authorize an appropriation transfer of $631,648
from the Technology Replacement Fund, Non-Departmental, Contingency Account, to
the Technology Replacement Fund, Non-Departmental, Computer Hardware account.

 

Page 7 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



  Council Focus Area(s):
 

13. Purchase of Data Backup and Recovery Infrastructure Expansion
  Move City Council approve the purchase of data backup and recovery capacity

expansion, from vCore Technology Partners, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No.
R191902, in the amount of $628,769.

 

  Council Focus Area(s): 
 

14. Agreement No. 2564, Amendment No. 3, for Accela Annual Maintenance
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. 2564, Amendment No. 3, with Accela, Inc.,

for annual maintenance, in an amount not to exceed $674,686, for a three-year period,
beginning July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025, payable on an annual basis.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

15. Purchase of Professional Configuration Services for the Information Technology
(IT) Service Portal

  Move City Council approve the purchase of professional configuration services for the
IT Service Portal, from SHI International, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No.
2018011-02, in the amount of $35,921.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Management Services
 
 

16. Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Budget Amendments
  Move City Council approve as presented the twenty-five one-time budget amendments

totaling $340,500 and three ongoing budget amendments totaling $37,000 for a total of
$377,500 using Council Contingency and authorize staff to transfer appropriation from
the Non-Departmental Council Contingency to the respective Departments after final
adoption of the FY 2022-23 Budget and Capital Improvement Program (CIP).

Page 8 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Police Department
 
 

17. Purchase of Property and Evidence Walk-In Freezer and Installation Services
  Move City Council approve the utilization of Maricopa County Contract No. 171203, with

Andrews Refrigeration, Inc., and City of Chandler Agreement No. BF8-936-3802, with
Western States Fire Protection Co., for the purchase of Police Property & Evidence
walk-in freezer and installation services, increasing the spending limit by $16,500.00, for
a revised amount not to exceed $72,538.12.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

18. Resolution No. 5588 Authorizing Acceptance of the Award of the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission FY22 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding
Program in the Amount of $60,545.25

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5588 authorizing acceptance of the
award of the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY22 Coronavirus Emergency
Supplemental Funding Program in the amount of $60,545.25, and authorize the Chief of
Police, as designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute
and submit all documents necessary in connection with such grant.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 9 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



Public Works and Utilities
 
 

19. Purchase of Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility Sludge Silo Platform Installation
Services

  Move City Council approve the purchase of silo platform installation services, from SDB,
Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 18-15PV-12, in an amount not to exceed
$250,000.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

20. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5012 Authorizing the Abandonment of
a Drainage Easement No Longer Needed for Public Use

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5012 authorizing the
abandonment of a drainage easement no longer needed for public use on property
located at the northeast corner of Cooper and Germann roads.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

21. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5015 Authorizing the Abandonment of a
Temporary Access Easement

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5015 authorizing the
abandonment of a temporary access easement on property located at the northeast
corner of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant Drive.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 10 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



           

Public Hearing
 

22. Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2022-23 Annual Budget and 2023-2032
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and Setting of Property Tax Levies

1. Open Public Hearing
2. Staff Presentation
3. Council Discussion
4. Discussion from the Audience
5. Close Public Hearing Click to View

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
 

Adjourn
 

 

Page 11 of 11 Council Regular Meeting



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: May 2022 City Council Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of
May 23, 2022; Study Session of May 23, 2022; Work Session of May 26, 2022;
and Regular Meeting of May 26, 2022.

Attachments
Minutes of the Work Session of May 23, 2022 
Minutes of the Study Session of May 23, 2022 
Minutes of the Work Session of May 26, 2022 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 26, 2022 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Work Session 
 

May 23, 2022 | 4:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers Conference Room 

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 4:30 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Josh Wright, City Manager 

Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Rosemary Rosales, Sr. Assistant City Attorney 

Councilmember Mark Stewart    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember René Lopez       

Councilmember Christine Ellis      

Councilmember Matt Orlando  

 

Absent 

Councilmember OD Harris - excused 

 

Staff in Attendance  

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager 

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager/CFO  

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager 

Derek Horn, Development Services Director 

David de la Torre, Planning Manager 

Leah Powell, Neighborhood Resources Director 

Amy Jacobsen, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 

Lauren Schumann, Principal Planner 

Ryan Peters, Strategic Initiatives Director 

Thomas Allen, Assistant City Attorney 

Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director 

  



Page 2 of 10 
 

Discussion 
1. Presentation and discussion on Chandler housing affordability, types, definitions, current 

conditions and future options. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE introduced the discussion item and called for a staff presentation.  

 

JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, said Council had requested more specifics on where in our 

community, from a land use perspective, do housing affordability options make sense. Mr. Wright 

said they would share a set of characteristics around the types of sites that would be suitable for 

housing affordability. Then, they would share some examples of sites with those characteristics. 

However, nothing binds the site to its use, as there would need to be future conversation with 

developers and owners. Mr. Wright said staff is looking to gather Council feedback on sites that 

could be utilized and improved by tools that the City can provide. 

 

DAVID DE LA TORRE, Planning Manager, presented the following presentation. 

• Housing Affordability Part 2 

• Meeting Intent 

o Review Housing Types 

o What Are We Missing? 

o Take a Virtual Tour 

o Discuss Housing Affordability Options 

• Let’s Review 

• Housing Continuum 

• Affordable Housing 

• Workforce/Attainable Housing 

• Market Rate Housing 

• What Are We Missing? 

• Diminishing Housing Affordability 

o Current Affordability “Gap Analysis” for Chandler 

 

MAYOR HARTKE mentioned this has been discussed before, but at 95% buildout, being able to 

reach the goal of 23,000 units is aspirational. With redevelopment there is some flexible space. 

Mayor Hartke asked if there is a plan to get there or is that just identifying a need. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that there is the opportunity to redevelop along the High-Capacity 

Transit Corridor which may produce more units, but would not be able to reach the goal units 

needed.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ mentioned that this is an existing housing gap, examined with the 

incomes and numbers of residents of Chandler. If someone were to try to rent an apartment or 

buy a house there is a gap.  



Page 3 of 10 
 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said yes. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ clarified that this is an evaluation of people living in Chandler currently, 

there is a gap, but they still reside here. They just happen to be paying more than they should in 

rent.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said yes, that was his understanding.  

 

AMY JACOBSON, Housing and Redevelopment Manager, confirmed, and said they are paying more 

than 30% of their income to housing. There is not enough supply for individuals in the lower 

bracket who can only pay up to $875 for rent.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if someone were to come into Chandler to try to live here in that 

income bracket, would that be possible.  

 

LEAH POWELL, Neighborhood Resources Director, said that this is examining people living in 

Chandler today who are paying over cost on their rent or mortgage. To correct that, this is the 

number of units needed. This does not include new residents; this only includes current residents.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said in the housing segment, it may be that the value of the house 

increased from the initial purchase date.  

 

MS. JACOBSON said that when monthly rent is around $875, there is a need of 8,000 units with a 

supply of only 2,500 units.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ responded that the rental value changes month to month, but homes 

are already owned, and they would not be able to buy their own house at current market value.  

 

MS. JACOBSON answered that for the ownership side, the deficit is on the lower bracket who can 

only afford a certain amount of monthly rent. There is a supply gap of around 4,300 units which 

is less than the number of owners that can afford that.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said if the price of rent keeps going up, the individuals currently 

living there may be priced out.  

 

MS. JACOBSON said yes.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if this study breaks down single family versus multifamily 

homes needed. 

 



Page 4 of 10 
 

MS. JACOBSON responded that the chart shows homeowners and rentals which could include 

single family rentals.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation.  

• Constraints and Limitations 

o 1. Chandler nearing buildout, limited land available for housing options 

o 2. State law prohibits municipalities from implementing controls on home pricing and 

rent charges 

o 3. State law prohibits municipalities from requiring affordable housing as a condition of 

zoning 

o 4. Housing projects often take several years before units become available 

• Addressing Housing Affordability, One Site at a Time… 

• Housing Types 

o Low-Density Residential (2.5-3.4 du/ac) 

o Medium Density Residential (3.6-12 du/ac) 

• Housing Types 

o High Density Residential (13-18 du/ac) 

o Urban Residential (18+ du/ac) 

• Housing: Build-Out, Build-Up and Infill Let’s Take a Tour… 

• Site Location Criteria for Affordable Housing 

o 1. Sites along High-Capacity Transit Corridor (Arizona Ave, Chandler Blvd, & Rural Rd) 

o 2. Infill parcels with non-traditional shapes 

o 3. Sites with mixed-use development opportunities 

o 4. Publicly owned land 

o 5. Sites that are buffered from existing low-density neighborhoods 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for information on the third point on the slide.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said that point refers to redevelopment opportunities, some are mixed use, it 

may be an existing development that is proposed. There may be a commercial corner that could 

be utilized if it is not occupied; there are two corners proposed and they both include mixed-use 

opportunities. There is also a vacant parcel on one of the sites that has a mixed-use opportunity. 

It is not just redevelopment; it could be any site that makes sense for mixed use.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if he was referencing the four-corners location where we were 

trying to take down some old retail and replace it with multi-family units or other use on this 

corner. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE responded yes, that this is built into this consideration.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if there were some projects moving forward in that program. 

 



Page 5 of 10 
 

MR. DE LA TORRE said yes, there are two.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation. 

• Example #1: Sites along High-Capacity Transit Corridor 

o Southwest corner of Chandler Blvd and 56th St 

o Zoned I-1 Planned Industrial and PAD for Commercial 

o Adjacent to Industrial and Commercial 

• Example #1: Sites along High-Capacity Transit Corridor 

o Along High-Capacity Transit Corridor 

o Within Loop 202/I-10 Growth Area 

o Appropriate location for Mixed Use; Urban Residential and Commercial to support 

Employment area 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked how many units could fit in this area.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that the urban-residential is two acres, which is just the immediate 

corner. The rest of the area is larger.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this was referring to the two acres or the larger area. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that the entire area is the example site. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked how many units you could get in there. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE responded that maybe 500 units could fit there. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the I-1 Planned Industrial zoning would mean employment 

opportunities. Councilmember Orlando asked why we would convert the industrial area when we 

would have the same issue as by the airport.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said additional residents could support employment, so residents could be able 

to live near where they work. However, this does not have to be converted.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said that there is also existing transit at this location. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE added that this location was along the High-Capacity Transit Corridor and thus 

would make a good candidate for affordable housing.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation.  

• Example #2: Infill Parcels with Non-Traditional Shapes 

o Southwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road 

o Zoned PAD Commercial in 1998, PDP in 2004 



Page 6 of 10 
 

o Adjacent Multi-Family, gas station, drive-thru restaurant and car wash 

• Example #2: Infill Parcels with Non-Traditional Shapes 

o Along High-Capacity Transit Corridor 

o Appropriate location for High Density – Urban Residential Density 

• Example #3: Sites with Mixed-Use Development Opportunities 

o Northeast corner of Alma School and Warner roads 

o Zoned PAD Commercial in 1991, Former Fry’s grocery store currently vacant 

o Adjacent Multi-Family, office, retail and restaurant uses 

• Example #3: Sites with Mixed-Use Development Opportunities 

o Located within Infill Area 

o Excellent Arterial Road access 

o 4-Corners Report 

o Appropriate location for Mixed-Use; Urban Residential & Commercial 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this would be a much bigger mixed-use project.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that the project currently under review is mixed-use.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked what they are anticipating for number of units.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said he did not have that information but staff would follow up.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation.  

• Example #4: Publicly Owned Land 

o West side of Hamilton St just north of Frye Rd (East of Downtown) 

o Owned by Chandler Unified School District 

o Zoned I-1 (Planned Industrial) 

o Adjacent light industrial, and High Density across Hamilton St 

• Example #4: Publicly Owned Land 

o Urban residential under construction to the northwest 

o Parcel to the west submitted a preliminary technical review application for urban 

residential 

o Appropriate location for High Density to Urban Residential due to proximity to 

downtown 

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked what was north of the site. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said to the north is light industrial properties, businesses, and small offices.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked about the empty lot. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said that it is zoned I-1.  



Page 7 of 10 
 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation.  

• Example #5: Publicly Owned Land 

o Northeast corner of Alma School and Ray Roads 

o City-owned and private property 

o Zoned C-2 Community Commercial and MF-2 Multiple-Family Residential 

o Adjacent Single-Family, Church, Retail and Multi-Family 

• Example #5: Publicly Owned Land 

o Located within Infill Area 

o 4-Corners Report 

o Appropriate location for Medium Density to High Density Residential 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if we have ever tried to sell this land.  

 

MR. WRIGHT answered we have tried to sell this land twice. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if we have tried to sell it recently.  

 

MR. WRIGHT said once in the past five years.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said that usually the demand is for whole pieces of land, and what 

was here before was not desirable.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE continued the presentation.  

• Example #6: Sites that are buffered from existing low-density neighborhoods 

o Southwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Pecos Road 

o Zoned PAD for Retail, Office, Hotel 

o Adjacent Loop 202 Freeway, Multi-Family, regional Commercial 

• Example #6: Sites that are buffered from existing low-density neighborhoods 

o Along High Capacity Transit Corridor 

o Entryway to Downtown 

o Appropriate location for Mixed Use; Urban Residential, Office and Commercial 

• Next Steps 

o Continue Repositioning of Public Housing to Increase Availability of Units 

▪ RAD Development Agreement anticipated summer 2022 

o When sites meet affordable housing criteria, use planning tools and incentives to 

stimulate private sector solutions 

o Updates codes and area plans to reflect need for more housing options 

o Support State and Federal efforts to address housing strategies and affordability 

 



Page 8 of 10 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the third point on the slide, there was previously a 

presentation about that from Zoning, updating some codes. Councilmember Ellis asked if we are 

in an assessment or presentation phase.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said that because of loss of staff, the timeline on that project has been delayed, 

but it is in progress and would return to Council. An estimated time of completion is unknown.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said that as this is important to encourage accessibility for builders, it 

should be a priority. 

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that it could be brought up to a priority.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE mentioned that there is a wide variety and asked if an economic job case for each 

of those sites is there. It varies for each site. Mayor Hartke said they must look at the sites to 

determine appropriate or best use. Over the years, the site in example six was considered for 

many different uses. Maybe mixed use could work, but each of these sites are unique. To consider 

urban density versus another use, more discussion is needed for redevelopment or infill. Not 

every piece of property could have the same criteria applied.   

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO commented that knowing the value of the property is important, 

and some of these sites may be more expensive, even for affordable housing or other units 

without putting a retail or other use to pay for the cost of the land. All these sites would be 

rezoned. Councilmember Orlando asked if there are other high-capacity corridors anticipated.  

 

RYAN PETERS, Strategic Initiatives Director, said that Arizona Avenue, Chandler Boulevard, and 

Rural Road are high-capacity corridors.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about Price Road. 

 

MR. PETERS said Price Road is not a high-capacity road.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said that it was considered at a point, but it did not work out. It is a job corridor, 

but it has a big flow in, big flow out.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said that a high-capacity transit corridor should also mean 

increasing other transit such as bus routes could be added.  

 

MR. WRIGHT thanked Council for the feedback. Mr. Wright emphasized that each case would have 

to be handled individually. It is a partnership with the private sector.  Mr. Wright said it sounded 

like there was support of now going through this exercise through these properties with possible 

characteristics. It is important to use our tools planning perspective help that discussion. It is a 

worthwhile exercise to go through as sites come in for redevelopment.  



Page 9 of 10 
 

 

MAYOR HARTKE agreed.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said we are facing pressure at the top, with the gap from luxury 

homes and single family, and at the bottom especially for seniors. Seniors may be priced out of 

their homes from inflation and rising costs. We need to work on both sides, not just low-income 

and multi-family housing. Councilmember Stewart asked about the situation on single-family 

homes.  

 

MR. DE LA TORRE answered that most of the large pieces of land are gone, one parcel just went 

through Council, and another one is coming soon for review for single-family developments.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if there is any communication with the County for land that 

could be annexed for multi-family or single-family housing.   

 

MR. DE LA TORRE said there is communication with the County. The County does send the City 

applications received within Chandler’s borders. Mr. De La Torre said they have not received any 

applications for multi-family or new subdivisions in a while but usually, they get sent to the City.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if it is appropriate to be proactive in communication with the 

County asking about plots of land for future City use.  

 

MR. WRIGHT answered that Mr. De La Torre is correct in mentioning keeping lines of 

communication open so inquiries and applications can continue to be forwarded to Chandler. The 

annexation process is from the stakeholder or landowner asking the City about it. The intention 

is to close the County island holes within City limits. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that there is a property where people are being placed into 

a lottery to purchase a lot. After money is put down, the price increases and the individuals can 

no longer qualify. People are being moved out of Chandler into Laveen. We must watch the single-

family home market, as there cannot be limitation, but must include some oversight so people 

are not taken advantage of. Once the market stabilizes or drops, how can we help the people who 

overpaid for their houses. There needs to be a balance between constraint and limitations with 

this process.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO remarked that the High-Capacity Transit Corridor has a lot of 

multifamily sites there. Councilmember Orlando said they have the last mile concept with 

ridesharing services now and did not want to be limited to just these areas and this could expand 

potential opportunities.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE summarized that Council is open to add the consideration review exercise for 

these types of properties.  



Page 10 of 10 
 

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:12 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 9, 2022 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 23rd day of May 2022.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2022. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Study Session 

 

May 23, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:01 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, City Manager  
Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Rosemary Rosales, Sr. Assistant City Attorney 
Councilmember René Lopez    Dana DeLong, City Clerk  
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember Christine Ellis  
Councilmember Matt Orlando 
 
Absent    
Councilmember OD Harris - excused  
 

Scheduled Public Appearances 
MAYOR HARTKE invited Councilmember Orlando to join him for the recognitions. 
 
1. Proclamation – Nurses Week 
MAYOR HARTKE read the proclamation and invited nurses from the Arizona Indian Nurses 
Association to accept.   
 
AMPILI UMAYAMMA, DNP, RN, AGNP-C, represented the Arizona Indian Nurses Association, a 
professional non-profit organization for uniting all Asian-Indian nurses in Arizona. Ms. Amayamma 
thanked Council their appreciation and recognition of nurses and recognized Mayor Hartke as an 
ardent supporter of the organization. Nursing is considered one of the most dedicated and 
difficult professions. With hard work, nurses will continue to better the community they serve.  
 



Page 2 of 11 
 

2. Recognition – Chandler Raiders National Championship Recognition 
MAYOR HARTKE read the proclamation and invited the Chandler Raiders to accept.   
 
PERCY KNOX, Assistant Coach, said it has been an honor to represent the city of Chandler. As this 
program was developed, there was a desire to compete on a national level. They have achieved 
two NFL Flag Football National Championships and three Hard Count National Championships 
over six years. Mr. Knox said they are proud of their accomplishments and happy to represent 
Chandler.  
 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
Discussion was held on items 4, 11, 26 and 27. 
 
City Clerk 
1. May 2022 City Council Minutes  

Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Study Session of May 9, 2022, 
and Regular Meeting of May 12, 2022. 
 

2. Board and Commission Appointments 
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

   
City Manager 
3. Annual Membership Fee for Valley Metro Rail, Inc.  

Move City Council authorize payment of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 annual membership fee 
for Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (Metro), in the amount of $49,995.  

 
Community Services 
4. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2201.201, with Barker Rinker Seacat Architecture, 

for the Tumbleweed Recreation Center Expansion Multi-Generational Facility Design 
Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2201.201 to Barker Rinker 
Seacat Architecture, for the Tumbleweed Recreation Center Expansion Multi-Generational 
Facility Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $1,056,370. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for a staff presentation. 
 
JOHN SEFTON, Community Services Director, introduced the item. The project history goes back a 
few years, after a 2020 multi-gen rec center feasibility study presented to Council in September of 
2020. They looked at the Recreation Program Plan, the Chandler Senior Needs Assessment, and 
the 2016 Chandler General Plan. They conducted community outreach, community surveys, many 
stakeholder enterprise meetings, a complete market analysis to determine the top needs for 
programs and amenities. The space for the expansion is envisioned to host a gymnasium and 
multipurpose areas with a focus on meeting the needs of the community at-large, especially for 



Page 3 of 11 
 

seniors and youth. Tumbleweed Rec Center was recognized as excessive in use, and community-
wide we are at a deficit of square footage. This expansion would address the deficit and expansion 
would continue with the use of some of Chandler schools and program opportunities. The 
projected schedule, if approved, would begin with programming, community input, and schematic 
design as early as June through August for the community to give feedback. Then project design 
and coordination, construction documents would be around May or June. The construction 
process is estimated to take 18 months, with completion in approximately two and a half years. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO remarked on the overuse of Tumbleweed. There is overlap between 
large sporting groups and this is a step in the right direction. Another direction was to look at 
outreach in other parts of Chandler to address neighborhood amenity needs and appreciated 
staff’s work on this. 
 
5. Project Agreement No. PR2105.401 with ForeSite Design & Construction, Inc., Pursuant to 

Job Order Contract No. JOC1905.401, for the Sunset Park ADA Improvements  
Move City Council award Project Agreement No. PR2105.401 to ForeSite Design & 
Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1905.401, for the Sunset Park 
ADA Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $303,616.00. 

 
6. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2105.451, with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Sunset Park 

ADA Improvements Construction Management Services 
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2105.451 to Dibble CM, 
LLC, for the Sunset Park ADA Improvements Construction Management Services, in an 
amount not to exceed $34,100. 

 
Cultural Development 
7. Resolution No. 5585 Approving a First Amendment to the Development Agreement 

between Spike Lawrence Ventures, LLC, and the City of Chandler to Allow the Construction 
of a Mixed-Use, Four-Story Retail/Residential Housing Development on the New Square 
Phase 2 Site, Located at the Northeast Corner of Oregon Street and Chicago Street.  
Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5585 approving a First Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between Spike Lawrence Ventures, LLC, and the City of Chandler 
to allow the construction of a mixed-use, four-story retail/residential housing development 
on the New Square Phase 2 site, located at the northeast corner of Oregon Street and 
Chicago Street. 

 
Development Services  
8. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5016, PLH21-0073 Veneto, Rezoning from Agricultural 

District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Medium Density Residential, Located 
on the Northeast Corner of Pleasant Drive and Pecos Road, Approximately ¼ Mile East of 
the Northeast Corner of Alma School and Pecos Roads  
Rezoning 



Page 4 of 11 
 

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5016 approving PLH21-0073, Rezoning from 
Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for medium density 
residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  

 
9. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5017, PLH21-0097 House for the Moore Family, Rezoning 

from Multi-family Residential District (MF-2) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Single-
Family Residential, Located South of the Southwest Corner of California and Chicago 
Streets, More Generally Located West of the Northwest Corner of Arizona Avenue and Frye 
Road 
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5017 approving PLH21-0097 House for the Moore 
Family, Rezoning from Multifamily Residential District (MF-2) to Planned Area Development 
(PAD) for Single-Family Residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
and Zoning Commission.  

 
Information Technology 
10. Purchase of Webex Annual Subscription  

Move City Council approve the purchase of Webex annual subscription from NTT America, 
Inc., utilizing the NPCA Contract No. 01-97, in the amount of $143,812, for a two-year period, 
beginning May 1, 2022, through April 30, 2024, payable on an annual basis, and authorize 
the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with NTT America, Inc. 

 
Management Services 
11. Resolution No. 5586, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Tentative Budget and 2023-32 

Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the Dates and Times for 
Hearing Taxpayers, for Final Adoption of the Budget, and for Setting the Tax Levies and Tax 
Rates 
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5586, adopting the FY 2022-23 Tentative 
Budget and 2023-2032 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing 
taxpayers, for final adoption of the budget, and for setting the tax levies and tax rates.  

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked for a staff presentation.  
 
MATT DUNBAR, Budget and Policy Officer, presented the following presentation. 
• Res. 5586 Tentative Budget Adoption 2022-23 Proposed Budget 2023-2032 Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) 
• Statutory Budget Process A.R.S. 42-17101 thru 17108 

o Adopt a tentative budget that sets forth the different amounts that will be required to 
meet the political subdivision’s public expense for the fiscal year 
 This information shall be entered into the minutes or the governing body 
 Shall be prepared according to forms supplied by the auditor general 
 This information must be published on the website for public review 



Page 5 of 11 
 

 Once tentatively adopted, budget cannot increase 
o After tentative adoption, a public hearing shall be had wherein any taxpayer may be 

heard in favor of or against any proposed expenditure or tax levy 
o Special meeting held after public hearing to adopt the Budget 
o Final tax rate adoption occurs on or before 14 days before taxes are levied, but after the 

public hearing 
• FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget “Staying Connected”  

o Total Budget $1,352,658,536 
o Total General Fund: $412,923,538 
o 27.8% increase overall 

 $755M operating (+9.8%) 
 $597M capital (+61.2%) 

o 22.7% increase in General Fund 
 Ongoing operating (+12%) 

o Proposed Budget 
 Adheres to financial policies and is structurally balanced 
 Uses Strategic Framework to guide decisions  
 Provides for cost-effective, quality services 
 Maintains long-term financial sustainability 
 Engaged Residents through input opportunities 

• Budget Survey, Kickoff, and Two Workshops 
• Budget Advancement of Strategic Framework Outreach Videos 
• All-day Budget Briefing 
• Tentative and Final Adoption 

• Budget Increase Drivers 
o Revenues 

 Prior 2 year’s budgets artificially low due to COVID 
 Current budget did not reflect Intel expansion revenue impacts 
 Increased revenues to reflect actual economic environment 

o Expenditures 
 Inflation increasing operations ($3.6M) and capital (4%-7%) budgets 
 Personnel costs increasing to invest in City workforce and retain employees; 

market, class and comp, and healthcare 
 Capital projects increased to address aging infrastructure, bond authorized 

projects, and grant funded projects 
 Includes $119M in projects for infrastructure to support Intel expansion 

o Grants 
 Includes $34.6M in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds included in FY 2022-

23 budget as carryforward 
 Enhance technology capabilities to assist with mobility, security and cloud-based 

solutions using AZCares; requiring additional ongoing resources to maintain 
o Debt 



Page 6 of 11 
 

 Additional one-time payments to continue planned paydown of PSPRS unfunded 
liability 

• Operating Budget Highlights 
o Slight reduction of City property tax rate, no change to Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) 

rates, and no new fees 
o Anticipate Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste rate changes as they were delayed from 

prior year 
o Budget maintains existing service levels and enhances programs tied to Strategic 

Framework 
o Adds funding for labor association commitments and general employee merit/market 
o Plans towards debt reduction: $50M in one-time funding for paydown of Public Safety 

Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) liability 
o Maintains strong reserves (includes 15% General Fund contingency reserve $10M 

budget stabilization reserve) 
• Average Annual Residential Cost Comparison for Direct Services 

o The average annual cost of services across the valley is $2,149 
• Average Residential Cost Comparison for Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
• 2023-2032 Capital Improvement Program CIP 

o Developed by CIP Coordination Team 
o Collaborative and flexible to changes 
o CIP guidance 

 Minimize increase in property taxes 
 Maintain, enhance, or re-imagine existing infrastructure 
 Finish planned construction of streets, parks, fiber and utility systems 
 Ensure related ongoing O&M can be supported prior to adding capital 
 Utilize master plans to guide long-term capital investment 

• 2023-2032 CIP Highlights 
o Continued emphasis on maintaining aging infrastructure 
o Reflects inflationary pressures 
o Includes $119M in projects for infrastructure to support Intel expansion 
o Continues to fund requested projects such as… 

 Police Forensic Lab facility 
 All phases of Mesquite Groves Park 
 Fiber upgrades 
 Tumbleweed Expansion/Multi-Gen facility 
 Airport improvements/Cooper Rd. extension 

o $1.66B Total 10-Year CIP 
• Proposed FY 2022-23 CIP Appropriation (all funds) 

o Contingency and Reserves $0.25M 
o Capital Carryforward $286.8M 
o New Funding $310.3M 
o Total CIP Appropriation $597.4M 



Page 7 of 11 
 

• Key Budget Dates 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the Council contingency allotment had been seen by 
Council.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE said that they will be voting on that and all the final details at the next meeting. 
 
JOSH WRIGHT, City Manager, said that final copy has not been provided, but would be shortly. 
Some numbers are still being finalized. However, the amount has been factored into the number 
shared tonight.  
 
12. Agreement No. MS2-920-4405 with Questica, Ltd., for Budget Software Solution and 

Support 
Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS2-920-4405, with Questica, Ltd., for the 
budget software solution, implementation, and support services in an amount not to 
exceed $1,367,517, beginning on the effective date of the agreement, for a period of five 
years.  

 
13. Agreement No. MS8-946-3910, Amendment No. 5, for Audit Services  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS8-46-3910, Amendment No. 5, with Heinfeld, 
Meech & Co., P.C., for audit services, in the amount of $148,910, for the period of June 1, 
2022, through May 31, 2023. 
 

14. Agreement No. WH8-890-3914, Amendment No. 4, for Waterworks Supplies  
Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH8-890-3914, Amendment No. 4, with Core 
and Main, LP, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to exceed $500,000, for the period 
of June 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023.  

 
15. Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies 

Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies from Waxie 
Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to 
exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023.  

 
16. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application for CEC Entertainment 

(Arizona), LLC, DBA Chuck E Cheese’s #3260  
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 
approval of the State Liquor Job No. 189746, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Ryan 
Witner Anderson, Agent, CEC Entertainment (Arizona), LLC, DBA Chuck E Cheese’s #3260, 
located at 2977 W. Frye Road, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant 
Liquor License No. 302401. 

 
Public Works and Utilities  



Page 8 of 11 
 

17. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5012 Authorizing the Abandonment of a Drainage Easement 
No Longer Needed for Public Use  
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5012 authorizing the 
abandonment of a drainage easement no longer needed for public use on property located 
at the northeast corner of Cooper and Germann roads. 

 
18. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5015 Authorizing the Abandonment of a Temporary Access 

Easement on Property Located at the Northeast Corner of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant 
Drive  
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5015 authorizing the 
abandonment of a temporary access easement on property located at the northeast corner 
of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant Drive. 

 
19. Resolution No. 5549 Approving the Acquisition of Real Property Needed for the Chandler 

Heights Road Utility Relocations and Salt River Project 230kV Power Line Easement in the 
Vicinity of Chandler Heights Road from the Union Pacific Railroad Alignment to Dobson 
Road 
Move City Council approve Resolution No. 5549 determining that acquisition of real 
property needed for the Chandler Heights Road utility relocations and Salt River Project 230 
kilovolt power line easement in the vicinity of Chandler Heights Road from the Union Pacific 
Railroad alignment to Dobson Road is a matter of public necessity; approving the purchase 
of such real property at market value plus closing and escrow fees; authorizing the City's 
Real Estate Manager to sign, on behalf of the City, the purchase agreements and any other 
documents necessary to facilitate these acquisitions; approving eminent domain 
proceedings as needed to acquire said real property and obtain immediate possession 
thereof; and approving relocation services as may be needed and required by law. 

 
20. Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 3, with M.R. Tanner Development and 

Construction, Inc., for Street Maintenance Repaving, Surface Seal, and Repair Services  
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 3, with M.R. 
Tanner Development and Construction, Inc., for street maintenance repaving, surface seal, 
and repair services, increasing the spending limit by $1,000,000, for a revised amount not 
to exceed $8,241,860.75. 

 
21. Purchase of SCADA Network Hardware Upgrades  

Move City Council approve the purchase of SCADA network hardware upgrades, from 
Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing 1GPA Contract No. 22-02PV-18, in an amount not to 
exceed $800,000. 

 
22. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. ST2009.401, Change Order No. 1, with DCS 

Contracting, Inc., for the Dobson Road Improvements at Intel Driveways #1 and #4 – GMP 
No. 2  



Page 9 of 11 
 

Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. ST2009.401, Change 
Order No. 1, to DCS Contracting, Inc., for the Dobson Road Improvements at Intel 
Driveways #1 and #4 – GMP No. 2, in an amount not to exceed $3,030,177.90, and 
authorize a transfer of funds from General Fund, Non-Departmental, Contingency Reserve 
to General Government Capital Projects Fund, Streets Capital, Other Streets 
Improvements, Dobson Road Intel Driveways, in the amount of $1,161,356. 

23. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.271, with Ardurra Group, Inc., for the Ocotillo 
Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street Post-Design Services 
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.271, to Ardurra 
Group, Inc., for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street Post-Design 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $86,605. 

 
24. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.401, with Haydon Building Corp., for the 

Ocotillo Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street 
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. ST1616.401 to Haydon Building Corp., 
for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street, in an amount not to 
exceed $6,763,162. 
 

25. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.451, with Consultant Engineering, Inc., for the 
Ocotillo Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street Construction Management 
Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.451, to Consultant 
Engineering, Inc., for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street 
Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $678,806. 
 

26. Project Agreement No. WA2007.402, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 
Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Alma School Well Site Improvements  
Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2007.402 to PCL Construction, Inc., 
Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Alma School Well Site 
Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $936,595.38. 

 
27. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2007.451, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Alma 

School Well Site Improvements Construction Management Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2007.451 to Wilson 
Engineers, LLC, for the Alma School Well Site Improvements Construction Management 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $157,990. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said that Chandler has been considered a leader in the Valley for 
water conservation through different projects over the years. Now we are coming up to our well 
system. Councilmember Orlando asked who has the rights of water if things worsen.  



Page 10 of 11 
 

 
JOHN KNUDSON, Public Works and Utilities Director answered that Chandler would not be in 
conflict with SRP over this water. The groundwater underneath Chandler and throughout the State 
in aquifers, is managed by the Arizona’s Department of Water Resources. There are around 30 
wells in Chandler, and around nine are partnered with SRP on. Each of those wells has a permit, 
which is administered by the State, with a certain amount of water appropriate to pump. Our wells 
are pumped for our use, to serve the residents of Chandler. SRP’s wells have multiple uses: 
agricultural irrigation, residential use. Some of SRP’s wells pump into the canals that serve the 
surface water plants throughout the valley. SRP partners with Chandler not only on well 
groundwater, but with providing water into the canals. Over the past 30 years, we have had 
partnerships with SRP to allow the City of Chandler first right of use on the partnered wells. This 
well, if Chandler does not use it, SRP could pump it into the Western canal to provide to the Tempe 
plant. It is a shared, cooperative source of water.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked staff and said we have done a lot to protect our residents 
and businesses in our community over the years.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ reaffirmed that Chandler has sustained the diversification of water 
sources through partnerships. Chandler’s maintenance of its wells has put us in a good position.   
 
28. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2005.252, with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the 

Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water Improvements Pre-Construction 
Services  
Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2005.252, to B&F 
Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water 
Improvements Pre-Construction Services, in an amount not to exceed $494,546.80. 

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 9, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 11 of 11 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 
Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 23rd day of May 2022.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2022. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

 

May 26, 2022 | 5:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers Conference Room 
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 5:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Josh Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 
Councilmember OD Harris     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember René Lopez       
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
Councilmember Matt Orlando  
 
Staff in Attendance  
Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager 
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer 
Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager 
Steven Turner, Assistant to City Manager 
Ryan Peters, Strategic Initiatives Director 
Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director 
Melissa Quillard, Mayor and Council Communications Manager 
 

Discussion 
1. Update on City Council Strategic Framework 

 
MAYOR HARTKE called for a staff presentation.  
 



Page 2 of 19 
 

JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, introduced the discussion item and said that this Strategic 
Framework was adopted a year ago on May 13, 2021 and is a two-year plan intended to run 
through 2023. In the past year Chandler has continued to be a Community of Innovation, and 
received accolades for its safety, quality of life, and economic strength. Following Council’s 
approval of the framework, the City’s executive leadership team comprised of department heads 
and other executive level positions in the City conducted its own retreat to produce an action plan 
that outlines clear steps for achieving Council’s vision. This action plan was presented to Council 
as part of a budget kickoff exercise in October of last year and formed the basis for the fiscal year 
22-23 annual budget. One year into the Strategic Framework, we are pleased to announce we 
have made progress on 36 of 38 action items.  
 
MR. WRIGHT presented the following presentation.  

• Strategic Framework City Council Report 
• Economic Vitality  
• Employment Corridor Area Plans 

o Complete employment corridor area plan updates currently in progress, expanding 
affected planning areas where appropriate 

o Airpark Area Plan 
 An upgrade to the 1998 plan that provides strategic guidance of future 

developments within the area surrounding the Chandler Municipal Airport 
o Downtown Area Plans 
 Downtown Alley Way Study 
 Pedestrian & Wayfinding Study  
 Urban Land Institute Study 

o South Arizona Avenue Corridor Update 
 Analyze development patterns since the plan was adopted in 2006. Develop 

updated plan that reflects the latest trends in development along with new 
ideas for the area.  

• Airport Development 
o Identify strategies for development of inside-the-fence vacant Airport properties 

per the 2021 Airport Master Plan 
o RFP for New Hangars 
 Issued an RFP for 4.3 acres on the north side of the airport to develop executive 

hangars as identified in the Airport Master Plan 
 Gate One was the successful submitter 
 If the contract is approved by City Council, development should be completed in 

less than two years 
o Airport Strategic Business Plan 
 Identify the development and financial goals, measurement criteria, and means 

to executing a successful capital development program 
 Refine the annual operating and maintenance expenses, and identification of 

future financial project requirements 



Page 3 of 19 
 

 The Plan will also help to augment and provide a clear pathway to fulfilling the 
goals set forth in the recent Airport Master Plan Update completed in 2020 

 Cooper Road extension and environmental analysis to highlight development on 
the Southside of the Airport 

• Redevelopment Strategies 
o Update infill and redevelopment strategies, resources, policies, and codes 
o Update City Code to Help Facilitate Redevelopment in Chandler 
 Project Cornucopia is a collection of code updates that pertain to development 

in Chandler 
 After presenting to a Council Subcommittee on April 5, 2022, draft updates are 

in progress 
• Higher Education Partnerships 

o Expand the City's partnership with Arizona State University, University of Arizona, 
Chandler-Gilbert Community College, and other higher education institutions 

o Relocate the U of A to the Johnathan Building 
 IGA to make the University of Arizona's Chandler location more accessible and 

visible to residents and employers. The University of Arizona will be hosting six 
open houses, and/or educational events per year from the new location 

o Combine Marketing Efforts with Economic Development and U of A 
 The University of Arizona has begun to offer their MBA program from the 

Chandler location 
o Improved Utilization of the ASU Chandler Innovation Center 
 City Council had a work session with ASU November 2021. Updates coming soon 

on potential deliverables with ASU 
o Pedestrian Corridor Study Grant in Downtown Chandler in Partnership with ASU 
 City received the Healthy Urban Environment Grant from ASU to evaluate Wall 

Street as a pedestrian corridor. The project included a week-long test period in 
March 2022 and a forthcoming report, written in collaboration with the project 
partners, which will be used not only for Wall St., but for other Downtown 
Chandler alleys.  

o City Internship Program with CGCC 
 Creation of internship program with Chandler-Gilbert Community College 

program which starts in July. The IGA is in progress 
• Innovation & Technology 
• Electric Vehicles 

o Increase the City's electric vehicle fleet and charging stations 
o Electric Vehicle Charging Feasibility Study 

 In FY 22/23 City staff will work with private and regional partners to develop a 
study to understand the true need and locations best suited for charging 
stations 

o Add Electric Car Charging Stations to City Facilities 



Page 4 of 19 
 

 Install car charging stations to support initial electric/hybrid vehicles at the 
Public Work, Utilities and Planning and Development building, Fleet and the 
City Hall parking garage 

 City received a grant to install two charging stations at the City Hall parking 
garage from Arizona Public Service (APS) 

o Purchase Hybrid/Electric Vehicles 
 Five electric vehicles ordered in FY 21/22 
 Nine hybrid trucks ordered in FY 21/22 
 One hybrid van ordered in FY 22/23 
 City fleet will have 26 hybrid vehicles and eight electric vehicles 

• Energy Savings 
o In partnership with private utilities, develop a strategy for increased power 

production at City facilities from solar and/or renewable sources with a goal of 
lowering operating costs 

o Energy Audit 
 Conduct energy audit to specifically focus on building mechanical systems 

and their controls 
 The audit would be applied to the city’s buildings with the highest electrical 

usage 
 EnergyCAP upgrade will allow staff to develop interval data/custom reports in 

order to identify utility cost avoidance opportunities 
o LED Street Light Conversion 

 Approximately 30% of the City's street light network has been converted to 
LED 

 Currently finishing audit of remaining street lights  
 Finalize agreement to replace remaining project with AZCares/General Fund 
 Council action late summer/early fall 

o New Solar Site Recommendations 
 Develop plan to map out potential locations for large scale solar sites around 

the City. Staff is in the initial process of developing the RFP with hope of 
selecting a vendor this summer 

 Staff will target sites near utility facilities to help reduce the energy costs at 
those facilities 

• Sustainable Community 
o Recommend development policies that support a more sustainable community 
o Include energy efficiency requirements in the re-adoption of the Building Code 

(effective 7/1/22) 
o Review new single-family homes to be pre-wired for electric vehicle charging and 

commercial sites to have charging stations 
o Allow permeable pavers in lieu of asphalt to allow more flexibility on infill and 

redevelopment projects 
o Add data center zoning requirements 



Page 5 of 19 
 

• Process Automation 
o Identify manual processes for conversion to automated (internal & external) 
o Manual signature/workflow processes 
o Contract management lifecycle enterprise wide 
o EDMS improvements by adding workflow processes 
o Convert court documents and prosecutor's office records to implement electronic 

processes and record storage 
o Boards and Commissions agendas and appointment processes 
o City Clerk records portal 
o Lab Information Management (LIMS) laboratory water testing 
o Compensation management system 
o Implement data analytics automation (data warehouse) 
o Implement a technology solution for Chandler Neighborhood Services for data 

driven decisions related to housing strategies 
• Technology Enhancements 

o Continue technology enhancements to support mobility and efficiency solutions 
o Implement tools for cyber security and risk management 
o Collaboration Mobility 

 Office 365 
 20 new collaboration conference rooms 

o Digital transformation/automation 
 Fleet management solution 
 Secure HR/payroll reporting 
 Pecos SWTP SCADA upgrade 

o Citizen Engagement 
 Smart parking downtown 
 Automated public records requests 
 Customer appointment enhancements 
 Virtual Programs 

o Process and work management efficiencies 
 Implement "Chandler Help" 
 Implement a new capital project internal charge process 
 Implement budget software and auto document creation 
 Implement Oracle Command Centers – dashboards 

• Brand Standards 
o Update brand standards and communication technologies to promote a connected 

city 
o Publish New Brand Style Guidelines 

 Selected Chandler-based Commit Agency to work on this project 
 Currently refining the draft version of the brand style guidelines and 

recommendations 



Page 6 of 19 
 

 Next steps include reviewing brand style guidelines and receive input from 
departments and City Management 

 Anticipated completion date is Summer 2022 
o Launch the HR Recruitment Digital Marketing Campaign 

 Contracted with a digital marketing firm, Davidson Belluso, to develop web 
and digital content for recruitment efforts 

 A macro site for city wide information will be created and "micro" sites will be 
created for each department 

 Help increase visibility of city positions, increase the applicant pool with 
qualified applicants, and attract candidates from outside the current 
recruitment area 

• Fiber Infrastructure 
o Initiate first phase of upgrades to City's fiber infrastructure (includes 17 groups of 

projects planned over 5-7 years) 
o Implementation of Phase 1A of the Fiber Master Plan 

 Dobson Rd. field verification project: Price Rd. and Innovation St. to Dobson 
Rd. and Chandler Blvd.  

• Mobility 
• Transportation Systems 

o Expand and/or renew pilot programs for micro transit, multimodal transportation, 
and intelligent transportation systems, including in underserved areas of Chandler 

o MAG Emerging Technology Program 
 AI technology to adjust traffic signal timing 

o Bicycle Detection Cameras (73 Intersections) 
o Fiber Optic Cable Upgrades 
o Congestion Monitoring (ARID) Device Installation 

 Communication equipment to gauge traffic speeds and assist in identifying 
congestion on City streets 

o Loop 101 Mobility 
 Advance the corridor as a model deployment for Integrated Corridor 

Management and connected vehicle initiatives 
 Regional Communication Network Upgrade at Loop 101 and Price Rd. 

• Bike and Pedestrian Studies 
o Initiate bike/pedestrian studies for connecting employment, recreation, 

neighborhood, and entertainment nodes 
o Frye Road Protected Bike Lanes 

 Construct physical barrier to separate bikes from vehicular traffic on Frye Rd. 
from the Paseo Trail to 1/2-mile west of Arizona Ave. 

o Western Canal Crossing at UPRR 
 Bicycle and pedestrian improvements to the railroad crossing. 

o Downtown ADA Improvements 



Page 7 of 19 
 

 Reconstructed curb ramps and sidewalks on Washington St., Boston St. and 
Chicago St. to bring the area up to ADA compliance. 

o Canal and Trail Improvements 
 This project will complete the connection between the Ashley Trail and Paseo 

Trail at Cooper Road, approximately 1/2 mile north of Chandler Blvd.  The 
project will add a safe crossing of Cooper Rd. and construct a 400' path east 
of Cooper Rd. to complete the connection. 

o Price/Ocotillo Shared Use Path 
 This study provides 15% design plans for a shared-use path on Ocotillo Rd. 

from Dobson Rd. to 148th St. and protected bike lanes on Price Rd. from 
Ocotillo Rd. to Loop 202 

o Hunt Highway Traffic Calming and Protected Bike Lane Study 
 This study will provide 15% design for a shared use path/ separated bike lane 

and potentially make recommendations for traffic calming on Hunt Highway 
from Cooper Rd. to Val Vista Dr. 

• Bike Lane Projects 
o Complete design of new bike lane projects, connecting points of interest and fixing 

system gaps 
o McClintock Dr. and Kyrene Rd. Bike Lanes 

 Narrowed medians to add bike lanes on Kyrene Rd from Chandler Blvd north 
to Orchid Ln. and on McClintock Dr. from the Loop 202 north to the City 
border with Tempe. Other roadway improvements will be included. 

o Chandler Blvd. Bike Lanes 
 Project to add bike lanes on Chandler Blvd from I-10 to 56th St. Other 

roadway improvements also included. 
o Southeast Chandler Arterial Road Improvements 

 Improvements consist of four traffic lanes, bike lanes, sidewalks, curbs and 
gutters, street lighting, turn lanes, traffic signals, storm drainage, 
landscaping, right-of-way acquisition, and utility relocation 

• Proposition 400 Extension 
o Finalize Proposition 400 Extension efforts in cooperation with regional partners and 

monitor availability of federal infrastructure grant opportunities 
o Loop 101 Widening 

 ADOT project, funded by regional Prop. 400 funds to add one lane in each 
direction.  Chandler contributed funding to repaint aesthetic features in the 
corridor. 

o Loop 202 Widening 
 This project will add two lanes in each direction between Loop 101 and Val 

Vista Dr. 
o Arterial Widening 



Page 8 of 19 
 

 The Arterial Lifecycle Program will have provided approximately $135 Million 
over 20 years (2006 - 2025) to make improvements to the City's arterial 
streets and intersections 

o Transportation Master Plan Implementation 
 Council-approved plan recommends improvements to roadways, bike and 

pedestrian facilities and transit from 2020 - 2040. 
• Transit Solutions 

o With employer input, determine appropriate transit solutions for employment 
corridors 

o Arizona Avenue Alternatives Analysis 
 Study on high-capacity transit that looked at alternatives on Arizona Ave 

o Price Flex Transit 
 Micro transit service in the southwestern part of Chandler 

o Autonomous Vehicle Industry Development 
 Strategic activities have included proactive outreach to companies, media 

campaigns, and participating in interviews, conferences and trade shows 
o First Mile Last Mile Program 

 Lyft partnership 
o Chandler Airpark Area Flex Transit Study 

 Flexible transit and micro transit options to serve the Chandler Airpark Area 
and the rest of Southeast Chandler 

• Neighborhoods 
• Diversity Programs 

o Using U.S. Census 2020 results and other data sources, identify diversity programs 
tailored to specific areas of the community 

o Diversity Events 
 City’s DEI Division produced or participated in 37 events with community 

partners 
 The approximate event attendance was 62,133, a record high 
 Includes the online views of the 26th Annual Multicultural Festival and the 

new Chandler Contigo series of events held to celebrate Hispanic Heritage 
Month in fall 2020 

 2022 Cultural Diversity Award by the National League of Cities 
o Bilingual Pay Program 

 Expansion of Bilingual Pay Program to include: 
 American Sign Language 
 Chinese 
 Hindi 
 Spanish 
 Tagalog 
 Vietnamese 



Page 9 of 19 
 

 The program expansion recognizes the growth of languages commonly used 
in our community and the need to serve residents and businesses in other 
languages 

• Neighborhood Programs 
o Integrate planning, programming, and communication efforts across City 

departments and partner agencies to positively impact disadvantaged 
neighborhoods 

o Envision Amberwood 
 Envision Program created to serve as an interdepartmental effort to engage 

and empower residents.   
 Envision Amberwood was held on March 1, 2022, and included a talent show 

and art walk with students from Sirrine Elementary School (600 in 
attendance). 

o Envision Galveston 
 Envision Galveston, “Touch a Truck” held on April 12 and included a job fair 

(900 in attendance). 
 Neighborhood surveys conducted and results are being evaluated. 

o For Our City Day 
 Volunteers paint homes, weed yards, and clean up alleys, provide free 

dumpsters for residents to get rid of unwanted stored items. The event 
serves traditional neighborhoods on the brink of decline and is coordinated 
by Neighborhood Programs. 

 Neighborhood Programs staff is currently in the process of surveying this 
year's targeted neighborhood to learn about the needs. This year's For Our 
City Day will take place Saturday, October 22, 2022. 

o Southside Village Neighborhood 
 Designed to encourage the preservation of the historical architecture and 

honor the individuals who came from this neighborhood and served the City 
of Chandler 

o Golden Neighbors Program 
 Connects seniors with cost-of-living assistance, resources for home repairs, 

everyday supplies such as toiletries, food, transportation assistance, and 
other senior needs 

 Monday, May 23, 2022, Neighborhood Program staff hosted the 2nd Golden 
Neighbors event 

 A third event will take place June 20, 2022. We are inviting PD and Oak Creek 
(non-profit) to share information regarding senior safety and other resources 

o Police Outreach and Engagement 
 Collaboration between multiple City and private resources to strengthen 

community partnerships and resiliency 
 Collaboration between PD and Boys and Girls Club to build trust and 

relationships. 



Page 10 of 19 
 

• Public Housing 
o Initiate the City's first Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) development 

agreement to reposition the Public Housing Authority, including a focus on 
maintaining senior housing options 

o Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Development 
 RAD is a HUD program that allows: 
 Funding for major building improvements 
 Stabilizing federal funding for the future 
 No Resident Displacement 
 No Loss of Housing Benefits 
 No Change in Rent Calculation (30% of income) 
 No Change in Management 
 A purchase offer has been made for the Trails End Apartments and the sale 

will close in July 2022 
 The proposed RAD project will have at total of 158 new housing units for 

existing public housing families and affordable units to include market rate 
units 

• Development Codes 
o Review development codes and other tools to facilitate diversity of housing choices 
o Review Development Codes and Other Tools to Facilitate Diversity of Housing 

Choices 
 Reposition Public Housing to increase availability of units 
 Use planning tools and incentives to stimulate private sector housing 

affordability solutions 
 Update codes and area plans to reflect need for more housing options 
 Support State and Federal efforts to address housing strategies 
 Tenant Based Rental Assistance 
 Emergency Housing Vouchers 
 Landlord Incentive Program 

• Revitalized Infrastructure 
o Identify unique themes and appropriate funding for new and revitalized 

infrastructure, particularly aging neighborhood parks 
o Utilities Water Pipe Replacement Program 

 Focuses on older neighborhoods, removing old cast iron pipe and replacing 
with new ductile iron pipe to improve system reliability 

 The Westwood Manor Neighborhood has been completed. The Chieftain 
Village and Kingston Neighborhoods are expected to be completed later this 
summer 

o Vida Park 
 This park has been referred to as East Mini Park for many years. Residents 

were involved in the re-naming process and suggested Vida Park. The 
Spanish translation for "vida" is "life." 



Page 11 of 19 
 

 Project was completed May 2021 
o Gazelle Meadows Park 

 Will be redone as part of the Detroit Basin Storm Drain Improvement project. 
Construction will begin in FY 22/23 

o Hoopes Park 
 Replaced playground equipment 

o San Marcos Park 
 Made landscape improvements 

o Folley Park 
 Made landscape improvements 

o Harris Park 
 Plans to add playground equipment in FY 22/23 

o Pima Park 
 General improvements and maintenance to the park and fields 

o Pueblo Alto Park 
 Replacing the ramada in FY 22/23 

• Support School Districts 
o Support area school districts in maintaining or enhancing local schools as 

neighborhood anchors 
o Recreational Programming at Local Schools 

 Working with school districts to provide recreational programming at Kyrene 
Elementary School District and Chandler Unified School District to utilize 
gymnasiums for adults’ sports, therapeutic recreation and other programs as 
needed 

 An IGA has been signed with Kyrene Elementary School District and staff is 
currently in discussion of how to implement IGA and determine future use of 
schools to provide various recreation programs 

o School Resource Officers 
 The Police Department has 11 School Resource Officers at 12 schools in the 

City of Chandler. All School Resource Officers have attended, and completed, 
the rigorous East Valley Crisis Intervention School.  

 Ongoing activities: 
 The School Resource Unit hosts a quarterly Youth Academy for students in 

grades seven through twelve. This provides students with an opportunity to 
learn jobs and functions of the Police Department as well as ask any 
questions they may have about modern policing.  

 The School Resource Unit facilitates a quarterly, “Youth Wilderness 
Experience” for underprivileged youth. This program is designed to promote 
self-discovery, principles of good character, and constructive interaction with 
others.  

 Future activities: 



Page 12 of 19 
 

 Police Department command will participate in Chandler Unified School 
District’s, “Portrait of a Graduate” program 

o Diversity Mini-Grant Program 
 Annual promotion to local school districts of our Diversity mini-grant 

program which support cultural events or activities 
 Funding is almost all dispersed for FY21/22 
 Staff will market the program in the teacher and principal newsletter.  Staff is 

working with CUSD Social workers on outreach to students on OBTS in July 
2020 

 Staff is working with CUSD District staff to get a 1-page document on how 
community groups and businesses can help at different schools with actual 
needs and support opportunities listed out 

• Quality of Life 
• Behavioral Health 

o Evaluate resources needed to address community behavioral health issues and 
promote healthy lifestyles 

o Behavioral Health Unit 
 Full five Police Officer Behavioral Health Unit (BHU) effective July 1, 2022 
 Focus on calls for services involving a person in crisis 
 Expenses will be partially offset by Smart and Safe Shared Revenues 
 Embedded Solari crisis counselors in CPD's 911 Communications Center 

o Mental Health Conference 
 Free, community wide mental health event equipped Chandler students in 

Junior High and High School, along with parents and other adults who are 
struggling with the mental health issues of depression, anxiety, suicidal 
thoughts and self-harm. 

 Partnership with LifeLines, Compass Christian Church, Chandler Unified 
School District, and Dignity Health 

 Included: 
 Keynote Speakers 
 Vendors 
 Breakout sessions 
 Peer mentorship 

o Navigator Program (Chandler Connect) 
 Between July 1, 2021, and April 30, 2022, Chandler Connect has served 352 

households (395 persons) experiencing homelessness 
 98% of program participants that have exited the program with positive 

outcome of diversion 
 Program participants have received 3,892 services including basic needs, 

physical and mental health services, transportation services and 
identification and documents 

o Support Court 



Page 13 of 19 
 

 Specialized court calendar dedicated to working with defendants that are 
experiencing homeless to resolve their criminals charges with the assistance 
of navigators and justice partners 

 Since the start in November 2021, the court has seen approximately 20 cases 
o Mental Health Court 

 This is a treatment court offered to connect individuals who have been 
charged with a criminal misdemeanor that are experiencing mental health 
issues with behavioral services offered by Mercy Maricopa 

 The court presides over 25 cases per month 
o Veterans Court 

 A regional effort by the East Valley Municipal Courts sharing resources to 
connect veterans charged with a criminals offense with veterans services 

 Chandler Municipal Court refers about 45 cases per year to the Veterans 
Court 

• Parks & Monuments 
o Lantana Ranch Park 

 In 2004, the City purchased approximately 70 acres of land located south of 
the Chandler Airport. Approximately 51 acres of this site will be developed as 
additional open space and utilized for general recreation. Phase one, which is 
8-acres in size, serves as the neighborhood park adjacent community. 

 Completed December 2021 
o Tumbleweed Park Softball/Baseball Complex 

 Construction of four 300' softball fields is expected to begin in FY 22/23 
 Anticipated completion day is May 2024. 

o Homestead North Park 
 The park will include lighted paths, playgrounds, lighted basketball court, 

lighted pickleball court, ramadas, open space, and landscaping. This park is 
also adjacent to the Paseo Trail along the Consolidated Canal and will offer 
amenities relating to the trail such as fitness equipment and a maintenance 
area. 

 Estimated completion by October 2022 
o Field of Honor 

 The goal of the Memorial is to provide a space for remembrance and 
reflection. The plan 

 integrates the ideas of the veterans into the design featuring two distinctive, 
yet complimentary spaces (Family Plaza Overlook and Stars and Stripes 
Level).  In 2016, the first phase of the project, the Family Plaza Overlook, was 
completed and dedicated. Phase two, the Stars and Stripes Level, is designed 
to match the exact ratio of the American Flag. 

 Completed November 2021 
• Art Opportunities 

o Cultural Development Events and Grants 



Page 14 of 19 
 

 Center for the Arts, Vision Gallery and Downtown Redevelopment received 
over $1.7 million in grants from Federal and State funding 

o Public Art Projects 
 Neighborhood Mural @ Harter Park 
 Police Department Memorial 
 INFLUX project 
 Breezeway Mural 
 16 Utility Boxes in Uptown Chandler 

o Chandler Museum Foundation 
 Chandler Museum has worked diligently with the Chandler Historical Society 

(CHS) to build trust and transparency to move CHS to dissolve and transfer 
their funds to the Chandler Museum Foundation (CMF). The first donation of 
$250,000 was given by CHS with additional funding to come. 

• Recreation Experience 
o Identify new technologies to improve recreational facility user experience and 

safety 
o Recreation Virtual Platform 

 Televeda was set up for the City during the pandemic to help reach our 
seniors within the community 

 Due to its great success, this service is being expanded to include other 
facilities 

 Permanent access to virtual recreation classes utilizing the Televeda platform 
will assist with reaching as many people as possible in the community that 
are of all ages and interest 

o Drowning Detection System 
 Established to provide an additional technology-based solution to aide in the 

detection of potential drowning situations 
 Alerts can be triggered when an individual accidentally falls in a community-

based pool 
 Implementation of Drowning Detection System technology will compliment 

and not replace lifeguards' ability to monitor swimmers 
o Pool Equipment Room Controller 

 Aide in the monitoring and suggested chemical treatments for the 
community-based pools within the City 

 Implementation of internet accessible controllers aide in monitoring water 
chemistry levels, automate record keeping and will send alerts to technicians; 
including remote access capabilities 

o Weather Alerting 
 Will provide timely alerts for our community pool users and give both the 

citizen and community services staff time to take the appropriate actions 
• Homelessness 



Page 15 of 19 
 

o Recommend fiscally sustainable strategies for addressing homelessness and 
panhandling activities in Chandler 

o Panhandling 
 The City received a permit from ADOT to install No Panhandling signs at 

freeway ramps in May 2022 
 Approximately 40 additional "Change Up" signs will be installed on Chandler 

streets in Summer 2022 
o Encampment GIS Initiative 

 The Neighborhood Resources and Police Departments have developed a 
work flow and an ARCGIS database that will track encampments from first 
touch through remediation 

 Homeless outreach, Police and Code staff will all have access to the database 
to communicate and coordinate services 

 The database will also provide important data points including geographic 
locations, time between identification and remediation, service levels and 
outcomes for residents living at the encampments 

 29 encampments have been documented since Neighborhood Resources 
began tracking them in February 2021 

• Utility Infrastructure 
o Continuously monitor and recommend strategies for enhancing the City’s utility 

infrastructure and water resources portfolio 
o Strategies for enhancing the City's utility infrastructure and water resources 

portfolio 
 Roosevelt Dam Flood Control Space Project will provide additional Salt River 

supplies during high flow years 
 Bartlett Dam Modification Project will provide additional Verde River supplies 

during high flow years 
 White Mountain Apache Tribe Settlement will provide additional Colorado 

River supplies on an annual basis 
 SRP CAP Interconnect Facility Project will allow Chandler to divert Salt and 

Verde Supplies to the CAP canal for delivery to Chandler’s San Tan Vista 
Water Treatment Plant to meet the demands of customers outside of SRP 
service area 

o Reclaimed Water Interconnect Facility (RWIF) 
 RWIF allows the City to store more of its CAP water at its reclaimed water 

recharge sites 
 Leverage mostly existing infrastructure owned by the City to optimize local 

resources and the local aquifer, as well as satisfying future industrial water 
demands in the City 

o Intel Partnership 
 Relocate 230 kV SRP power lines along Alma School Road and Chandler 

Heights 



Page 16 of 19 
 

 RWIF to provide Intel with water for cooling systems 
o Loop 101/202 Repair 

 On January 27, 2022, City Council entered into a Joint Project Agreement (JPA) 
with the State of Arizona 

 The City will be reimbursed up to $8,000,000 to repair the broken water main 
break near the Loop 101/202 Interchange 

• Good Governance 
• Space Assessment 

o Enhance existing City buildings based on recent space utilization and condition 
assessments 

o Study to determine if the City can avoid long-term maintenance expenses and 
enhance overall employee experience with increased efficiencies 

o Faithful + Gould selected to conduct space assessment 
o Analyze cost avoidance recommendations 
o Next step to perform feasibility cost/schedule analysis 

• Voter Education 
o Promote voter education on bonds and home rule initiatives 
o Social media posts on the City of Chandler channels reminding residents of 

important dates 
o Print ads in community newspapers 
o Digital ads with Arizona Informant on Facebook 
o Partnership with Cultura Communications to reach Hispanic market 
o Bus shelter ads in 15 strategic locations 
o Newly designed publicity pamphlet mailed to all Chandler voters 
o Utility bill inserts in July 2021 
o San Tan Sun News article in September 2021 
o Videos specific to each bond question in English and Spanish 
o "What is a bond" educational video produced in English and Spanish 
o All five bond questions passed with an average of nearly 71% 

• Create Savings 
o Seek opportunities to use one-time dollars to create ongoing savings 
o City of Chandler received recognition from the White House for creatively using 

Federal COVID relief funds as a way to generate ongoing savings to pay and recruit 
more police officers 

• Grants & Partnerships 
o Maximize the use of grants and partnerships to achieve strategic goals 
o Created new Grants Administrator position 
o Received $62,654,978 in grants in FY 21/22 

• 21st Century Workforce 
o Recommend programs and strategies to continue building a 21st century workforce 
o Classification & Compensation Study 



Page 17 of 19 
 

 New classification system that accurately reflects job requirements and 
responsibilities 

 Provide flexibility needed to update classification and job duties 
 75th percentile market placement compensation strategy 
 Completion and implementation of study results targeted for year-end 2022 

o Implemented the Telework Administrative Regulation 
o Upgrade all City computers to laptops to support mobility 
o Adjustments to hiring process to provide more flexibility to hiring managers and 

applicants 
• PSPRS Pay Down 

o Continue the City's plan to pay down its Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 
(PSPRS) obligations 

o On March 24, 2022, City Council directed staff to move towards a more aggressive 
payment plan to pay off the unfunded liabilities of the PSPRS pension system 

o Staff will use additional one-time funds from two years of COVID reduced budget 
and strong development revenues to make larger payments through FY 24/25 

o Projections show the City's PSPRS pension system will be 100% funded following 
the FY 26/27 

 
MAYOR HARTKE commented that when he was in Washington, D.C., he received a call from the 
White House commending us on ways to keep the City safe. Mayor Hartke said we want to be 
known as a safe community and we do all we can to keep our streets safe. Mayor Hartke asked 
about traffic calming on Hunt Highway. There are concerns about traffic and traffic speeds in the 
area. Mayor Hartke asked what they are hoping to do in terms of calming, not just for bike lanes, 
but to slow traffic down from Val Vista to McQueen. 
 
MR. WRIGHT answered that this has evolved over time, this was originally included in the 2019 
Transportation Master Plan. It was a challenge to determine what would fit in the right-of-way. 
Since the discussion about the casino, staff has talked about expanding the scope study to 
include bike and pedestrian as well as traffic improvements. It depends on the land use models 
on the GRIC side. There may be further development that is currently unknown, but they need to 
be ready for that conversation on how to make that road safe. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS thanked staff for their support. Council has come together with staff for 
Chandler to leap to the next level. Councilmember Ellis said we are doing great work on the non-
discrimination ordinance and that was not mentioned in the report. People typically ask and 
want to know what we are doing about diversity. The City needs to let people know what we are 
doing and that the work is being done.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said that the first time that Council brought up the non-discrimination ordinance 
was at the end of the retreat last year. It did not make it into the formal plan or the DEI 
assessment. However, the process is underway, working with consultant and the panel. The 



Page 18 of 19 
 

panels are going well. The study is on track, and we will likely hear about communication, how 
events are promoted, positive attendance for events, and the non-discrimination ordinance.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that people will ask on the writing of the ordinance or a 
proposition. Councilmember Ellis requested more updates on this process. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS complimented the presentation. Councilmember Harris shared pride 
in our accomplishments over the past year. Councilmember Harris said they changed our brand 
statement; it shows our progress and change over time. Promoting our brand statement of a 
safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that connects people, chooses innovation and 
inspires excellence is important to share. Chandler is a proud city continuing to work on these 
issues.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said this presentation and accomplishments reflects well on staff. 
Councilmember Orlando asked how they keep track of meeting the objectives.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said that performance management is a key part of what they do. Each of the five 
focus areas has a Council subcommittee as well as a staff subcommittee. Mr. Wright said they 
meet on a regular basis to get updates on accomplishments. This would eventually develop into 
into a performance dashboard, which would show a wider description of what they are doing to 
calculate metrics. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ thanked staff for the presentation. This should be shared on the 
website to let people know what is going on in Chandler. It is reassurance that Chandler is doing 
what we should be and keep working forward to excellence. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked Mayor for promoting collaboration on the strategic 
framework. The vision is focused on the core competencies and what they are supposed to be 
doing. Chandler serves as an example for other cities. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked Mayor for his leadership on bringing Council together for the 
retreat to work together the Strategic Framework for the City’s unified vision.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO added that over the past couple of years, the vocabulary focused 
on “maintenance”, but now we are at a point of “enhancement”. Councilmember Orlando said 
they are making things better for future generations.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART shared that people love Chandler.  
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:48 p.m. 



Page 19 of 19 
 

 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 9, 2022 
 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 
Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 26th day of May 2022.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2022. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Regular Meeting 

 

May 26, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, City Manager  
Vice Mayor Terry Roe     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 
Councilmember OD Harris    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
*Councilmember René Lopez     
Councilmember Christine Ellis  
Councilmember Matt Orlando 
 
*Councilmember Lopez attended telephonically. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked for a moment of silence to honor victims of Uvalde, Texas and Buffalo, 
New York.  
 

Invocation 
The invocation was given by Reverend Denise Burns, Chandler First Church of the Nazarene. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Ellis. 
 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
 
City Clerk 



Page 2 of 8 
 
 

 

1. May 2022 City Council Minutes  
Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Study Session of May 9, 2022, 
and Regular Meeting of May 12, 2022. 
 

2. Board and Commission Appointments 
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

 
City Manager 
3. Annual Membership Fee for Valley Metro Rail, Inc.  

Move City Council authorize payment of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 annual membership fee 
for Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (Metro), in the amount of $49,995.  

 
Community Services 
4. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2201.201, with Barker Rinker Seacat Architecture, 

for the Tumbleweed Recreation Center Expansion Multi-Generational Facility Design 
Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2201.201 to Barker Rinker 
Seacat Architecture, for the Tumbleweed Recreation Center Expansion Multi-Generational 
Facility Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $1,056,370. 

 
5. Project Agreement No. PR2105.401 with ForeSite Design & Construction, Inc., Pursuant to 

Job Order Contract No. JOC1905.401, for the Sunset Park ADA Improvements  
Move City Council award Project Agreement No. PR2105.401 to ForeSite Design & 
Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1905.401, for the Sunset Park 
ADA Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $303,616.00. 

 
6. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2105.451, with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Sunset Park 

ADA Improvements Construction Management Services 
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2105.451 to Dibble CM, 
LLC, for the Sunset Park ADA Improvements Construction Management Services, in an 
amount not to exceed $34,100. 

 
Cultural Development 
7. Resolution No. 5585 Approving a First Amendment to the Development Agreement 

between Spike Lawrence Ventures, LLC, and the City of Chandler to Allow the Construction 
of a Mixed-Use, Four-Story Retail/Residential Housing Development on the New Square 
Phase 2 Site, Located at the Northeast Corner of Oregon Street and Chicago Street.  
Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5585 approving a First Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between Spike Lawrence Ventures, LLC, and the City of Chandler 
to allow the construction of a mixed-use, four-story retail/residential housing development 



Page 3 of 8 
 
 

 

on the New Square Phase 2 site, located at the northeast corner of Oregon Street and 
Chicago Street. 

 
Development Services 
8. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5016, PLH21-0073 Veneto, Rezoning from Agricultural 

District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Medium Density Residential, Located 
on the Northeast Corner of Pleasant Drive and Pecos Road, Approximately ¼ Mile East of 
the Northeast Corner of Alma School and Pecos Roads  
Rezoning 
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5016 approving PLH21-0073, Rezoning from 
Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for medium density 
residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  

 
9. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5017, PLH21-0097 House for the Moore Family, Rezoning 

from Multi-family Residential District (MF-2) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Single-
Family Residential, Located South of the Southwest Corner of California and Chicago 
Streets, More Generally Located West of the Northwest Corner of Arizona Avenue and Frye 
Road 
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5017 approving PLH21-0097 House for the Moore 
Family, Rezoning from Multifamily Residential District (MF-2) to Planned Area Development 
(PAD) for Single-Family Residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
and Zoning Commission.  

 
Information Technology 
10. Purchase of Webex Annual Subscription  

Move City Council approve the purchase of Webex annual subscription from NTT America, 
Inc., utilizing the NPCA Contract No. 01-97, in the amount of $143,812, for a two-year period, 
beginning May 1, 2022, through April 30, 2024, payable on an annual basis, and authorize 
the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with NTT America, Inc. 

 
Management Services 
11. Resolution No. 5586, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Tentative Budget and 2023-32 

Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the Dates and Times for 
Hearing Taxpayers, for Final Adoption of the Budget, and for Setting the Tax Levies and Tax 
Rates 
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5586, adopting the FY 2022-23 Tentative 
Budget and 2023-2032 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing 
taxpayers, for final adoption of the budget, and for setting the tax levies and tax rates.  
 



Page 4 of 8 
 
 

 

12. Agreement No. MS2-920-4405 with Questica, Ltd., for Budget Software Solution and 
Support 
Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS2-920-4405, with Questica, Ltd., for the 
budget software solution, implementation, and support services in an amount not to 
exceed $1,367,517, beginning on the effective date of the agreement, for a period of five 
years.  

 
13. Agreement No. MS8-946-3910, Amendment No. 5, for Audit Services  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS8-46-3910, Amendment No. 5, with Heinfeld, 
Meech & Co., P.C., for audit services, in the amount of $148,910, for the period of June 1, 
2022, through May 31, 2023. 
 

14. Agreement No. WH8-890-3914, Amendment No. 4, for Waterworks Supplies  
Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH8-890-3914, Amendment No. 4, with Core 
and Main, LP, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to exceed $500,000, for the period 
of June 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023.  

 
15. Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies 

Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies from Waxie 
Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to 
exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023.  

 
16. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License application for CEC Entertainment 

(Arizona), LLC, DBA Chuck E Cheese’s #3260  
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 
approval of the State Liquor Job No. 189746, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for Ryan 
Witner Anderson, Agent, CEC Entertainment (Arizona), LLC, DBA Chuck E Cheese’s #3260, 
located at 2977 W. Frye Road, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant 
Liquor License No. 302401. 

 
Public Works and Utilities 
17. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5012 Authorizing the Abandonment of a Drainage Easement 

No Longer Needed for Public Use  
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5012 authorizing the 
abandonment of a drainage easement no longer needed for public use on property located 
at the northeast corner of Cooper and Germann roads. 

 
18. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5015 Authorizing the Abandonment of a Temporary Access 

Easement on Property Located at the Northeast Corner of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant 
Drive  



Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 

Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5015 authorizing the 
abandonment of a temporary access easement on property located at the northeast corner 
of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant Drive. 

 
19. Resolution No. 5549 Approving the Acquisition of Real Property Needed for the Chandler 

Heights Road Utility Relocations and Salt River Project 230kV Power Line Easement in the 
Vicinity of Chandler Heights Road from the Union Pacific Railroad Alignment to Dobson 
Road 
Move City Council approve Resolution No. 5549 determining that acquisition of real 
property needed for the Chandler Heights Road utility relocations and Salt River Project 230 
kilovolt power line easement in the vicinity of Chandler Heights Road from the Union Pacific 
Railroad alignment to Dobson Road is a matter of public necessity; approving the purchase 
of such real property at market value plus closing and escrow fees; authorizing the City's 
Real Estate Manager to sign, on behalf of the City, the purchase agreements and any other 
documents necessary to facilitate these acquisitions; approving eminent domain 
proceedings as needed to acquire said real property and obtain immediate possession 
thereof; and approving relocation services as may be needed and required by law. 

 
20. Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 3, with M.R. Tanner Development and 

Construction, Inc., for Street Maintenance Repaving, Surface Seal, and Repair Services  
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 3, with M.R. 
Tanner Development and Construction, Inc., for street maintenance repaving, surface seal, 
and repair services, increasing the spending limit by $1,000,000, for a revised amount not 
to exceed $8,241,860.75. 

 
21. Purchase of SCADA Network Hardware Upgrades  

Move City Council approve the purchase of SCADA network hardware upgrades, from 
Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing 1GPA Contract No. 22-02PV-18, in an amount not to 
exceed $800,000. 

 
22. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. ST2009.401, Change Order No. 1, with DCS 

Contracting, Inc., for the Dobson Road Improvements at Intel Driveways #1 and #4 – GMP 
No. 2  
Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. ST2009.401, Change 
Order No. 1, to DCS Contracting, Inc., for the Dobson Road Improvements at Intel 
Driveways #1 and #4 – GMP No. 2, in an amount not to exceed $3,030,177.90, and 
authorize a transfer of funds from General Fund, Non-Departmental, Contingency Reserve 
to General Government Capital Projects Fund, Streets Capital, Other Streets 
Improvements, Dobson Road Intel Driveways, in the amount of $1,161,356. 



Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 

23. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.271, with Ardurra Group, Inc., for the Ocotillo 
Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street Post-Design Services 
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.271, to Ardurra 
Group, Inc., for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street Post-Design 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $86,605. 

 
24. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.401, with Haydon Building Corp., for the 

Ocotillo Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street 
Move City Council award Construction Contract No. ST1616.401 to Haydon Building Corp., 
for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street, in an amount not to 
exceed $6,763,162. 
 

25. Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.451, with Consultant Engineering, Inc., for the 
Ocotillo Road Improvements – Gilbert Road to 148th Street Construction Management 
Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST1616.451, to Consultant 
Engineering, Inc., for the Ocotillo Road Improvements - Gilbert Road to 148th Street 
Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $678,806. 
 

26. Project Agreement No. WA2007.402, with PCL Construction, Inc., Pursuant to Job Order 
Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Alma School Well Site Improvements  
Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2007.402 to PCL Construction, Inc., 
Pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1915.401, for the Alma School Well Site 
Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $936,595.38. 

 
27. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2007.451, with Wilson Engineers, LLC, for the Alma 

School Well Site Improvements Construction Management Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2007.451 to Wilson 
Engineers, LLC, for the Alma School Well Site Improvements Construction Management 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $157,990. 

 
28. Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2005.252, with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the 

Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water Improvements Pre-Construction 
Services  
Move City Council award Construction Manager at Risk Contract No. WW2005.252, to B&F 
Contracting, Inc., for the Chandler Boulevard and Dobson Road Sewer and Water 
Improvements Pre-Construction Services, in an amount not to exceed $494,546.80. 

 

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Orlando moved to approve the Consent Agenda of the May 26, 2022, Regular City 
Council Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Ellis.  



Page 7 of 8 
 
 

 

 
Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances 
There were none.  
 

Current Events 
Mayor's Announcements 
MAYOR HARTKE gave kudos to the DEI team for their activity in promoting Asian American Pacific 
Islander Heritage Month events such as the Asian Heritage Cultural Showcase, Asian American 
Community Conference, and themed story times at the library.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE wished everyone a happy and safe Memorial Day weekend.  

 
Council's Announcements 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said that he organized the Mental Health Candlelight Vigil, and thanked 
community leadership, volunteers, and students who supported this event.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS mentioned Chandler resident Lloyd Boyd turned 100 years old last 
week and wished him a happy birthday.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS shared on behalf of COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ that he would be 
attending the Memorial Day Service at the Valley of the Sun cemetery on Monday, May 30 at 9:00 
a.m. Councilmember Harris said they are grateful for our military heroes.  
 
VICE MAYOR ROE wished everyone a happy Memorial Day.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART mentioned he attended the Chandler Chamber of Commerce Policy 
Impact Series Cybersecurity event with other staff and thanked the Chamber for putting on this 
event.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS thanked Francisco Luciano and Stephen Erno for what they have done at 
Chandler, and what they would accomplish in the future.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO mentioned he would be at the Valley of the Sun Memorial Day Event 
on Monday and that the Chamber’s Cybersecurity event went well.  
 
City Manager's Announcements 
None.  
 



Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:11 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 9, 2022 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 26th day of May 2022.  I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2022. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Vice Mayor and City Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Board and Commission Appointments

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as
recommended.

Human Relations Commission
Beatriz Ramirez



ITEM  3 

City Council Memorandum      Communications and Public Affairs  Memo No.
N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Matthew Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director
From: Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director
Subject: Purchase of EditShare Equipment

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of EditShare equipment, from EAR
Professional Audio Video, utilizing the 1GPA Contract No. 22-02PV-06, in the
amount of $71,987.

Background/Discussion:
This purchase is for a video production storage system that enables video footage
to be uploaded, stored and shared among staff as they edit and produce video
packages for the City of Chandler. 

Evaluation:
Paradise Valley School District, on behalf of 1GPA, competitively solicited and
awarded a contract for technology and audio/visual solutions.  The City has a
current agreement with 1GPA that permits the cooperative use of their contracts. 

Financial Implications:
The purchase is funded through the Video Production Cost Center
(1071). Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the
FY2022-23 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Dollar CIP Funded



Account No. Fund Name Program
Name

Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1071.6314.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $71,987 N



ITEM  4 

City Council Memorandum      Cultural Development  Memo No. CD 22-035
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager
Kim Moyers, Cultural Development Director

From: John Owens, Downtown Redevelopment Specialist
Subject:Resolution No. 5589, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District

(EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-23 between the City of Chandler and
the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership, and authorizing the City's
voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the amount of $118,804.

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5589, authorizing the Enhanced
Municipal Services District (EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-23 between
the City of Chandler and the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership, and
authorizing the City's voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the amount of
$118,804.

Background:
At the Chandler City Council meetings on March 24, 2022, and May 12, 2022, the
Mayor and City Council took all actions necessary to renew the EMSD. Staff is
requesting approval of an EMSD Agreement with the Downtown Chandler
Community Partnership (DCCP). Through this action, the DCCP is designated as
the entity to manage and operate programs in the EMSD. 

Discussion:
The DCCP's primary responsibilities include representing EMSD rate payers,
preparing an annual EMSD budget, and developing a work plan from the goals
outlined in the attached Exhibit B.

The agreement also details the City's participation in the EMSD. Financially, the
City of Chandler voluntarily contributes $118,804 to the EMSD. The agreement



also identifies how payments will be made from the City to the DCCP, both using
City funds and using funds obtained through the assessment of private property
owners through the Maricopa County Assessor's Office. Finally, the agreement
outlines the City-provided services that will be delivered during the term of the
agreement.

The DCCP participated in the development of the agreement, including providing
a budget and work plan for the upcoming year. The DCCP Executive Board has
formally approved the content of this agreement and looks forward to continuing
as the administrator of the EMSD.

Should Mayor and Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5589, staff will process
the first voluntary payment to the DCCP prior to July 15, 2022, as specified in the
agreement.

Financial Implications:
Assessments for privately-owned property in the District total $191,829. Staff has
forwarded the Assessment Roll to Maricopa County for inclusion in the fall
property tax bills. The City's voluntary contribution of $118,804 has been included
in the Downtown Redevelopment budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23. The total
amount of the EMSD budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $310,633.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5589 
City of Chandler and DCCP Contract 
Contract Exhibit A: DCCP Boundary Map 
Contract Exhibit B: DCCP Operating Plan 
Contract Exhibit C: City Services Provided Downtown 
DCCP Insurance Certificate 



RESOLUTION NO.  5589 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE ENHANCED MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
DISTRICT AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023, BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF CHANDLER AND THE DOWNTOWN CHANDLER 
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S 
VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $118,804. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona (the “City”), initiated an 
improvement district known as City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced 
Municpal Services District (the “District”) by the adoption of Resolution No. 3905 (the 
“Resolution of Intention”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council did make an annual statement and estimate of the expenses 
of the District for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023; and did 
assess the total sum upon the several lots within the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mayor and Council adopted Resolution No. 5581 approving the 2022-2023 annual 
assessment for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (“DCCP”) is designated the entity 
to manage and operate programs in the District through the annual renewal of the Downtown 
Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement (the “Agreement”); and  
  
WHEREAS, the Enhanced Municipal Services District functions of representing district 
ratepayers, developing the annual District budget and work plan, and monitoring performance 
and provision of District services have been maintained; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement has been modified from the prior year contract to change how 
reserves are accounted for, and how unused funds from the prior year are programmed; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement describes a work program to be performed by the District and City 
maintained baseline service levels for the period beginning July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 
2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement pledges the City’s commitment to pay a voluntary contribution to 
the District and identifies two equal installments to be made to the DCCP on or before July 15, 
2022 and January 15, 2023.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approves the annual Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services 

Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 



Resolution No. 5589 
Page 2 

  

 
 
Section 2. Authorizes the City to pay to the DCCP, as a voluntary contribution to the 

District, the total sum of $118,804.00 in two equal installments in accordance 
with the schedule of payments set forth in the Agreement. 

 
Section 3. Directs the City Clerk to certify the fact and date of such approval on the 

duplicate copies of the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services 
Agreement. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of June, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________      ____________________________ 
CITY CLERK     MAYOR 
            
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5589 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_______  day of June, 2022, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 ___________________________________ 
            CITY CLERK 
    
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 















Exhibit A 

 

 

 



Exhibit B 

 
 
 

Downtown Chandler Community Partnership 
2022-23 Work Plan 

 

1. Marketing and Promotion 
A. Promotional Events/Programs 

• Seasonal Events and Promotions: Winter, Spring, Summer, Fall  

• Events: Sippin’ Santa’s, Your Bacon Me Crazy Brunch Crawl, Sugarland, 
Downtown Chandler Farmers Market 

• Holiday campaign 

• Small Business Saturday 

• Holiday Décor/Seasonal Lighting 

• Event Partnerships – Fine Arts and Wine Festival 

• Serve on City Special Events Committee 
B. Downtown Marketing and Communications 

• Downtown map/brochures kept current and regularly updated 

• Seasonal Promotional Campaigns – Play and Patio – Channel Your Chill 

• Brand Campaign – Downtown Live! 

• Monthly Newsletters – Downtown Update (Stakeholders) and Downtown Dish 
(public) 

• Special Event Notifications/communications 

• Website kept current and regularly updated  

• Promote downtown parking options, both surface and garage  

• Social media 

• Kiosks/banners kept current and regularly updated 

• Collaborative marketing with downtown businesses 

• Online event calendar kept current regularly updated 

• Assist City in Communication efforts with Downtown Businesses and Property 
Owners 

2. Safety and Beautification 

• Clean Team Services - 7 days a week – minimum 40 hours 

• Ambassador Program 2-3-month pilot program on the weekends during high 
visitor season. 

• Provide flower planting in pots along colonnade area and intersection of Frye 
and AZ. Ave/Boston/AZ Ave as needed. 



Exhibit B 

 

3. Downtown Management 

• 6-Downtown Stakeholders Meetings 

• Minimum 9 Board Meetings 

• Annual Satisfaction survey 

• Monthly Financials 

• Bi-annual audit (odd years) 

• Annual Meeting  

• Annual Report 

• DCCP Workplan 

• DCCP Budget 

• EMSD Renewal  

• Advocate for Downtown projects, businesses and property owners 

• Liaison between stakeholders/City 

• Fundraising efforts for Special Programs/Projects 
 
 

 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

CITY SERVICES PROVIDED IN DOWNTOWN 

FY2022-23 

 

 

           

City Services to Be Provided to Downtown 
 

Downtown Redevelopment Staff 

(Non-exhaustive list of responsibilities) 

 

• Manage all economic development activities in Downtown Chandler, including, but 

not limited to: 

o Business recruitment, retention, and expansion assistance 

o Deployment of City-owned land for redevelopment projects through the 

request for proposal process 

o Management and negotiation of development agreements  

o Serving as a liaison between the downtown business community and the City 

of Chandler 

o Providing research services and analyzing relevant economic data 

• Initiate and implement the various projects and activities of the City’s Downtown 

program including, but not limited to: 

o Coordinating and leading City Capital Improvement Projects throughout 

Downtown Chandler 

o Coordinating maintenance tasks within the physical environment throughout 

Downtown Chandler 

o Leading and coordinating the implementation of various new improvements  

o Coordinating with the City’s Communication and Public Affairs Department to 

create marketing content and events for Downtown Chandler  

o Leverage best practices for the implementation of placemaking projects  

• Serve as the liaison between the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership and 

the City of Chandler  

• Coordinate across City departments and the Downtown Chandler community to 

address quality of life issues  

 

City of Chandler Police Department 

 

• Traditional-type patrol officers are assigned to the area in marked police cars to 

respond to routine calls for service.  

• The bicycle team is available for enforcement in Downtown Chandler. 

• Crime prevention personnel are available to offer advice regarding crime 

prevention through environmental design and/or business practice. 

• Specialized enforcement as needed for criminal activity. 



 

 

 

City of Chandler Public Works Department 

 

• Perform street sweeping weekly 

• Inspect storm drains and inlets twice annually and clean as needed 

• Perform concrete and asphalt repairs as needed 

• Inspect pavement markings once per year and redo as needed 

• Repair, replace, and install traffic signs as needed 

 

City of Chandler Downtown Maintenance Costs 

Chandler Park Maintenance 

 
Downtown Storefront Maintenance Costs 

• Sidewalk maintenance and cleaning including power-washing once every two weeks 

and emptying trash cans once per week, as well as other tasks as needed  

 
Landscaping Behind San Marcos Place Storefronts 

• Pick up trash twice per week 

• Prune shrubs six times per year 

 
Breezeway Cleaning 

• Maintenance tasks including power-washing of breezeway once every two weeks 

and other maintenance tasks as needed 

• Pick up trash twice per week 

 
Sidewalk Flower Pots 

• Maintenance tasks including re-planting (approximately April/October), weeding 

and fertilizing twice per year. 

• City provides water for all pots on the Parks irrigation system. City provided pots 

without an automatic watering system will be watered by the store owner adjacent 

to the pots. 

• Staff will communicate upcoming planting dates to Downtown personnel. 

 
Parking Lot Sweeping 

• Sweep city parking lots/courts with motor sweeper monthly. 

 
A.J. Chandler Park 

• Maintain A.J. Chandler Park including mowing, fertilizing and watering of grass, 

maintenance of trees and other plant material and cleaning open space ramada 

areas including maintenance of landscaped medians.  

• DCCP has been granted one storage unit in which to store their special event and 

cleaning equipment.  



 

 

City of Chandler Building and Facilities 

 
Downtown Period & Colonnade Lighting & Repairs 

• Pay for annual electrical APS utility costs on existing lighting. 

• Perform colonnade lighting repairs including light bulb, ballast, lenses, breaker 

repair and replacement on existing lighting including gooseneck lighting and 

Sternbergs. 

• Maintain LED light strips along edge of colonnade 







ITEM  5 

City Council Memorandum      Economic Development  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
Micah Miranda, Economic Development Director

From: Kimberly Janes, Tourism Program Manager
Subject:Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 4, with Simpleview, LLC, for

Search Engine Optimization and Pay Per Click Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 4,
with Simpleview, LLC, for search engine optimization and pay per click services, in
an amount not to exceed $75,200, for the period of one year, beginning July 1,
2022, through June 30, 2023.

Background/Discussion:
The Proposition 302 Maricopa County Grant program (Prop 302) is available to
destination marketing organizations within Maricopa County and is administered
by the Arizona Office of Tourism.  The purpose of this grant program is to provide
funding for new and expanded tourism marketing activities such as advertising,
website development, public relations and travel industry marketing that focus on
promoting the community as a destination.  The City of Chandler has utilized Prop
302 to fund the development, maintenance, and support of the City's tourism
website, www.VisitChandler.com, since 2003.

The responsive website features essential Chandler tourism information including,
but not limited to, hotel accommodations, attractions, a calendar of events, and a
dining guide. It is a key marketing tool to reach potential visitors.  
VisitChandler.com is featured on all promotional materials and advertisements and
is also used to measure the success of advertisements and general promotions.
 The website is a key source of information for people researching travel to
Chandler and continues to drive online traffic.  For Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22,



year-to-date through April 2022, the tourism website generated 472,752 sessions,
representing a 103.4% increase in traffic when compared to the same period in
FY 2020-21.

Pay per click (PPC) ads are strategically placed website advertisements which
appear on the right and on top of natural search engine results for specific
keywords and phrases.  PPC is typically a strong marketing strategy when trying
to rank highly competitive keywords and phrases with more immediate results.
 Search Engine Optimization (SEO) is an organic method of increasing the
likelihood that a website is found by a user when searching for a keyword or
phrase through a search engine, thereby connecting the user with the content he
or she is seeking.  SEO is a strong, long-term strategy which requires a continual
investment of time but provides lasting website growth. 

In FY 2018-19, the tourism website was refreshed and was designed to execute
specific, strategic digital campaigns aligned with the Tourism Strategic Plan.  A
block of simple support hours allows for minor modifications within FY 2022-23. 

Evaluation:
On June 14, 2018, City Council approved Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, with
Simpleview, LLC, for search engine optimization and pay per click services, for a
one-year period, with the option of up to four one-year extensions. Staff
recommends the extension of the Agreement for the period of one year, beginning
July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the
FY2022-23 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

217.1580.5219.0.3ED001Grants Prop 302
Tourism Grant

$75,200.00 N

Attachments
Amendment 



                                                                
 

 

City Clerk Document No.     

 

City Council Meeting Date:  June 9, 2022  

 

 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 

SEARCH ENGINE OPTIMIZATION AND PAY PER CLICK SERVICES 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. ED8-920-3876 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 (Amendment No. 4) is made and entered into by and between the City of 

Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and Simpleview, LLC, (Contractor), (City and 

Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties) and made 

   , 2022 (Effective Date). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for search engine optimization and pay per click 

services (Agreement); and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, with the option of up to 

four one-year extensions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to exercise the fourth option through this Amendment to extend the 

Agreement for one year. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    

 

2. Section 4, Price is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost 

set forth in Revised Exhibit B of the original Agreement, attached to and made a part of this 

Amendment No. 4. Total payments made to the Contractor during the term of this Amendment 

No. 4 will not exceed $75,200.00. 

 

3.  Section 5, Term is amended to read as follows: The Agreement is extended for a one-year period 

July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D9F8B3E2-9176-4D89-B230-16EB2B5B4030



DocuSign Envelope ID: D9F8B3E2-9176-4D89-B230-16EB2B5B4030

Head of Contracts & Procurement



REVISED EXHIBIT B  

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Section 1: Search Engine Optimization 

All-inclusive pricing for the services described in the Scope of 

Work. 

 

Organic SEO and Reporting $24,000.00 per year 

Analytics Included in Management Fee 

  

Section 2: Pay Per Click 

All-inclusive pricing for the services described in the Scope of 

Work. 

 

PPC Management $7,200.00 per year 

PPC Spend $36,000.00 per year 

  

 

Section 3: 

 

Simple Support $8,000.00 per year 

  

Section 3: Total Annual Cost 

Total annual cost of services for Sections 1, 2 and 3 above. $75,200.00 

  

Section 4: Hourly Rates 

Provide staff roles and hourly rates for services in addition to the 

Scope.  

 

Role: Lela Scott MacNeil (Digital Media Analyst) $125.00 per hour 

Role: Leanna Gonzalez (SEO Analyst) $125.00 per hour 

  

  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D9F8B3E2-9176-4D89-B230-16EB2B5B4030



ITEM  6 

City Council Memorandum      Facilities and Fleet  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
From: Mike Hollingsworth, Facilities & Fleet Manager
Subject:Maintenance, Repair, and Purchase of Doors, Locking Systems, Door

Hardware, and Operable Walls

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the utilization of the Mohave Educational Services
Cooperative Contract No. 21H-DHP-0917, for maintenance, repairs, and purchase
of bay doors, locking systems, door hardware, and operable walls, from DH Pace
Company, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $126,764.

Background/Discussion:
The City maintains various doors, locking systems and operable walls. This
agreement will allow DH Pace, as needed, to provide maintenance and repairs to
various overhead doors, locking systems, gates, door hardware and operable
walls, as well as purchase of related parts, in an amount up to $50,000. 

In addition, the Chandler Police Department, in coordination with Chandler Fire
Department, will use DH Pace to provide services to remove and relocate an
existing sliding steel gate at the east entry of the Public Safety Training Center.
The existing gate will be relocated further east along the main entrance to the
Public Safety Training Center and Fire Training buildings. The relocation will
provide a single controlled access point to both training centers.The desire is to
re-use the existing gate and, as much as practical, the existing hardware. The
estimate for the proposed relocation is $76,764. The access control components
of this project will be executed under a separate contract.

Evaluation:
Mohave Educational Services Cooperative, Inc., competitively solicited and



Mohave Educational Services Cooperative, Inc., competitively solicited and
awarded a contract to DH Pace Company Inc., for doors, locking systems, door
hardware and operable walls.  The City has an agreement with Mohave
Educational Services Cooperative that permits the cooperative use of its
contracts.  The term of the Mohave Educational Services Cooperative contract is
valid through September 16, 2022. 

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2022-23 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded
Y/N

101.3200.5410.0.0.0 General Fund N/A $50,000 N
460.2100.6210.0.6PD646 Public Safety

Police Bond Fund
Public Safety
Training
Facility

$12,795 Y

401.2100.6210.0.6PD646General
Government
Capital Fund

Public Safety
Training
Facility

$63,969 Y



ITEM  7 

City Council Memorandum      Facilities and Fleet  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
From: Mike Hollingsworth, Facilities & Fleet Manager
Subject:Sole Source Purchase of Beam Global Electric Vehicle (EV) ARC 2020 Solar

Powered EV Charging Stations

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of two Beam Global EV ARC
2020 Solar Powered EV Charging Stations in an amount not to exceed $145,350.

Background/Discussion:
As the City adds more electric vehicles to its fleet, staff have identified the need
for a vehicle charging station to be installed at the City Fleet Division building at
the Armstrong Yard, located near McQueen Road and Armstrong Way. There is
currently no charging station at this building.

Staff evaluated and costed the engineering, design, and construction to add a
permanent, fixed charging station and electrical infrastructure at this location,
which was approximately $98,000.  When reviewing alternative solutions, a
solar-powered EV charging station option offered by Beam Global was shown to
be less expensive ($70,000-$75,000) as well as portable as an off-grid solution,
not relying on external power sources, and having no utility costs. Staff is
requesting to purchase one unit this fiscal year to be used at the City Fleet
Division building and one next fiscal year, should the Council contingency budget
amendments (which also appear on this agenda) be approved, for placement at
City facilities that have the greatest need.

Evaluation:
The EV ARC 2020 is the world's first and only fully-autonomous, transportable,



The EV ARC 2020 is the world's first and only fully-autonomous, transportable,
solar-powered electric vehicle charging system. Purchase of this product is
currently only available through Beam Global.  Staff reviewed this as a sole source
purchase based on sole source criteria. It is recommended that up to two
solar-powered electric vehicle charging systems from Beam Global be approved
through sole source.

Financial Implications:
Partial funding will come from General Fund, Non-Departmental Cost Center,
Motor Vehicles Account, Smart Cities/Innovations Subaccount
(101.1290.6310.7SMT) in the amount of $45,908. Additionally, the Fleet Division
will use General Fund, Fleet Services Cost Center, Motor Vehicles
Account, Smart Cities/Innovations Subaccount (101.1270.6310.7SMT) budget in
the amount of $99,442 for a total of $145,350.  $74,000 of the Fleet Services
funding would be made available through the approval of the budget amendments
included on this agenda.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1270.6310.7SMT.0.0General
Fund

N/A $99,442 N

101.1290.6310.7SMT.0.0General
Fund

N/A $45,908 N



ITEM  8 

City Council Memorandum      Fire  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Thomas Dwiggins, Fire Chief
From: Stacy Meendering, Fire Accreditation & Data Coordinator
Subject:Resolution No. 5587 Approving and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the First

Amendment to Education Services Agreement between the City of Chandler
Fire Department and Dignity Health

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5587 approving a First
Amendment to Education Services Agreement between the City of Chandler Fire
Department and Dignity Health for paramedic neonatal resuscitation educational
services.

Background:
For ten years, the Chandler Fire Department (CFD) has conducted a paramedic
training program in conjunction with Phoenix College. Through a rigorous
10-month course conducted within the Department, firefighters have become
certified as paramedics. 

To reduce costs and provide CFD firefighters an optimal education, the
Department is applying for accreditation through the Commission on Accreditation
of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) for its own paramedic program.
Currently, CFD has been approved by CAAHEP to begin the Letter of Review
(LoR) process, which requires CFD to comply with the current Maricopa
Community College District’s (MCCCD) paramedic educational curriculum. This
curriculum requires paramedic students to become certified as a Neonatal
Resuscitation Provider. Resolution No. 5587 allows CFD to extend its current
agreement, previously approved by the Chandler City Council on June 24, 2021,
under Resolution No. 5491, with Dignity Health to provide the educational
requirements that CFD paramedic students need to become certified in Neonatal



Resuscitation Program (NRP).

The term of the agreement commences upon execution of the contract and ends
June 30, 2025. This agreement fulfills CAAHEP accreditation guidelines, MCCCD
curriculum requirements, and certifies CFD paramedics as Neonatal Resuscitation
Providers.

Financial Implications:
The Chandler Fire Department will pay Dignity Health $270 per two-hour
classroom session taught at a ratio of one (1) educational instructor for every
eight (8) CFD paramedic students in attendance. The training fee will be paid out
of Chandler Fire existing account line 101.2220.5814.0.0.0.

Attachments
Resolution 5587 
First Amendment 



RESOLUTION NO. 5587 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 

ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 

THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO EDUCATION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHANDLER FIRE DEPARTMENT AND DIGNITY 

HEALTH. 

 

WHEREAS, Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation d/b/a Mercy Gilbert 

Medical Center (“Dignity Health”) and the City of Chandler (“City”) desire to provide a qualified 

instructor to teach a neonatal resuscitation program class to students, firefighters, paramedics, or 

other attendees at Chandler Fire Department’s location; and 

 

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. 5491, approved on June 24, 2021, the Chandler City Council 

approved the Education Services Agreement (“Agreement”) between the City and Dignity Health; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City wants to amend the existing Agreement to extend its term to June 30, 2025. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 

as follows:  

 

Section 1. That the Mayor is authorized to sign First Amendment to Education Services 

Agreement between the City of Chandler and Dignity Health.  

 

Section 2. That the various City officers and employees are hereby authorized and directed to 

perform all acts necessary to give effect to this Resolution. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ____ day 

of June 2022. 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________  ____________________________________ 

CITY CLERK      MAYOR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 5587 

Page 2 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5587 was duly passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 

____ day of June 2022, and that a quorum was present thereat. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY  

    

 

 

 

 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO EDUCATION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO EDUCATION SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is 
entered into effective the later of July 1, 2022 , or the last date signed below ("Renewal Effective Date"), by and 
among Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation d/b/a Mercy Gilbert Medical Center, 
and Dignity Community Care, a Colorado nonprofit corporation d/b/a Chandler Regional Medical Center 
( collectively, "Educator"), and Chandler Fire Department ("Recipient'), amending that certain Education 
Services Agreement entered into between Educator and Recipient effective July 1, 2021 (the "Agreement"). 

THE PARTIES agree as follows: 

1. The Parties amend Section 1 of the Agreement to read as follows:

"This Agreement expires on June 30, 2025."

2. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged, and except as expressly
modified by this Amendment, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Amendment may be 
executed by the Parties in any number of separate counterparts and all of said counterparts taken together shall 
be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Educator and Recipient execute this Amendment as of the dates below. 

Educator 

Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation, d/b/a Mercy Gi bert Medical 
Center 

Printed Name/Title: kfl-
� � ()LW 1�Ltf�£.� 
�� 'If LB/ 2o '1....7
Dignity Community Care, a Colorado nonprofit 
corporation, d/b/a Chandler Regional Medical 
Center 

[246578]258908.1375544 

Recipient 

Chandler Fire Department 

Printed Name/Title: _________ _ 

Date: ______________ _ 

Page 1 of 1 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 



ITEM  9 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Rachelle Faherty, IT Applications Manager
Subject:Purchase of Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) System Annual Support

and Maintenance

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of Enterprise Asset
Management (EAM) system annual support and maintenance, from CentralSquare
Technologies, LLC, in the amount of $101,474, for the term of July 1, 2022,
through June 30, 2023.

Background/Discussion:
Lucity is the EAM system that manages the City's service and work requests,
coordinates preventative maintenance programs, and tracks City asset
maintenance throughout the asset's life cycle.  The City continues to expand the
use of the application for other City work management functions.  This system
also handles citizen service requests with a web-based service request system.

The support provides access to technical assistance resources to resolve
application issues and software fixes and includes application upgrades necessary
to operate and keep the system current.

Evaluation:
In June 2020, Council approved an agreement with CentralSquare Technologies,



In June 2020, Council approved an agreement with CentralSquare Technologies,
LLC, for the annual support and maintenance of the EAM system.  The agreement
allows for support and maintenance services to be performed annually while the
EAM system is in use by the City.  Because the system is proprietary, the ongoing
support and maintenance services are available only from CentralSquare
Technologies.  No other vendors are authorized to provide these services.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2022-23 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5419.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $101,474 N



ITEM  10 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Rachelle Faherty, IT Applications Manager
Subject: Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and
maintenance, from Mythics, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No.
180233-002, in the amount of $300,171, for the term of August 1, 2022, through
July 31, 2023.  

Background/Discussion:
The City utilizes Oracle database products to store data for the following major
systems: Permits and Inspections, Utility Billing, Geographic Information Systems,
Tax & License Application and numerous other departmental systems.  The City
utilizes E-Business Suite Applications, which includes Self-Service Human
Resources, Financials, Project Billing, iExpense, and iProcurement application
modules.

Oracle support provides access to technical assistance resources needed to
resolve system issues as well as software fixes.  The maintenance provides
system and application upgrades necessary to operate and keep the systems
current.  The maintenance includes security patches for vulnerabilities and
important tax and financial regulation changes.

The City purchases maintenance and support based on the number of servers and
processors on which the software is running on an annual basis.

Evaluation:



Evaluation:
Maricopa County, on behalf of Omnia Partners, competitively solicited and
awarded a contract for Oracle Products and Services.  The City has a
current agreement with Omnia Partners that permits the cooperative use of its
contracts.  The term of the Omnia Partners contract is valid through November 30,
2023.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this contract is contingent on adoption of the FY 2022-23 Budget and
new appropriation being made available by July 1, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5419.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $300,171 N



ITEM  11 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Kerstin Nold, Chief Technology Officer 
Subject:Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 1, for Business License Portal

Applications Managed Support Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 1, with
Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business license portal applications managed support
services, in the amount of $222,000, for the period of June 15, 2022, through June
14, 2023.

Background/Discussion:
In 2019, the Management Services Department, Tax and License Division,
introduced an online customer portal to automate and enhance doing business
with the City of Chandler.  This online portal allows customers to register their
business, initiate a liquor license or special event liquor license, and apply for
specialty licenses (e.g. massage, peddler, second hand dealer, etc.), as well as
renew, pay, and print business registrations without the need to visit City Hall. The
City is seeking a continuation of vendor-managed support services for
providing citizen enhancements and ongoing application support and maintenance
of this portal, as well as the critical Tax and License systems (e.g. licensing portal
and the tax and licensing audit software suite) which help manage the tax
licensing data and revenues that flow from the State of Arizona. 

Evaluation:
On June 10, 2021, City Council approved an agreement for business license



On June 10, 2021, City Council approved an agreement for business license
portal applications managed support services with Parsus Solutions, LLC, for a
one-year period, with the option of up to three one-year extensions.  The
Contractor has agreed to extend for one year at the same terms and conditions.     

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement will use $222,000 from AZCares contingency
authorized for use in Fiscal Year 22-23. This item is included in the City's
ARPA/AZCares framework in the Innovation and Technology Council Focus Area,
as approved via Resolution No. 5481 on May 13, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

217.1280.5219.0.3AZ004.0 Grant
Fund

Citizen
Engagement/Mobility
Program

$222,000 N

Attachments
Agreement 



                                                                
 

 

City Clerk Document No.     

 

City Council Meeting Date: 6/9/22   

 

 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION PORTAL APPLICATIONS 

MANAGED SUPPORT SERVICES 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. IT1-918-4343 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 is made and entered into by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona 

municipal corporation (City), and Parsus Solutions, LLC, an Arizona limited liability corporation 

(Contractor), (City and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to 

as Parties) and made    , 2022 (Effective Date). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for managed support services (Agreement); and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was June 15, 2021, through June 14, 2022, with the option of up 

to three one-year extensions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to exercise the first option through this Amendment to extend the 

Agreement for one year. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    

 

2. Section III is amended to read as follows: The Agreement is extended for a one-year period June 

15, 2022, through June 14, 2023. 

 

3.  Section IV is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost set 

forth in Revised Exhibit B of the original Agreement, attached to and made a part of this 

Amendment No. 1.  Total payments made to the Contractor during the term of this Amendment 

No. 1will not exceed $222,000. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8943B278-1FB2-442F-BA57-F193A54D3EBF



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8943B278-1FB2-442F-BA57-F193A54D3EBF

Partner, Parsus Solutions, LLC



REVISED EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 

Contractor will track time for all contractor staff for time spent on City’s systems and will obtain 

approval prior to submitting any invoice.  Hours will be billed in five-minute increments and will be 

sent to the City on a monthly basis.  The rate for services provided is $150 per hour with a 4% yearly 

cost-of-living adjustment. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8943B278-1FB2-442F-BA57-F193A54D3EBF



ITEM  12 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Owen Zorge, Chief Information Security Officer
Subject: Purchase of Network Infrastructure Equipment

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of network infrastructure equipment,
from Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 22-02PV-18,
in an amount not to exceed $1,196,037, and authorize an appropriation transfer of
$631,648 from the Technology Replacement Fund, Non-Departmental,
Contingency Account, to the Technology Replacement Fund, Non-Departmental,
Computer Hardware account.

Background/Discussion:
The City of Chandler’s budgeted equipment lifecycle for network infrastructure
equipment is evaluated annually to determine reliability, supportability and viability
for continued use.  This review identified that the network equipment used to
provide network connectivity at various locations in the City has reached the end
of useful life.  In addition, new locations have been identified that require
installation of network equipment to support end user needs. City Hall and other
downtown locations are in need of equipment refresh or new installation to
increase capacity and to reduce the risk of unplanned outages.  This equipment
provides connectivity to City technology services that are provided on centralized
systems as well as internet connectivity to services hosted outside the City’s
network. 

Evaluation:
Paradise Valley Unified School District competitively solicited and awarded a



Paradise Valley Unified School District competitively solicited and awarded a
contract for technology and audiovisual solutions on behalf of 1GPA.  The City has
a current agreement with 1GPA allowing for the cooperative use of its contracts. 
The term of the 1GPA contract is valid through December 7, 2022, and has
options to extend through December 7, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

403.1290.6315.0.0.0 Technology
Replacement

N/A $1,196,037 N



ITEM  13 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Owen Zorge, Chief Information Security Officer
Subject: Purchase of Data Backup and Recovery Infrastructure Expansion

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of data backup and recovery capacity
expansion, from vCore Technology Partners, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract
No. R191902, in the amount of $628,769.

Background/Discussion:
The City of Chandler relies on data protection services to ensure critical data and
services are backed up on a regular basis, with the ability to restore/recover in
support of business continuity in accordance with local and state guidelines.  New
services/solutions are implemented on a regular basis and existing
services/solutions storage capacity continually trend upward with respect to data
capacity.  As such, the capacity need for the backup and recovery solution
continues to grow in parallel.  

The City of Chandler Information Technology (IT) Department recommends the
expansion of storage capacity for the Citywide Enterprise Data Backup and
Recovery environment manufactured by Rubrik.  This solution will ensure capacity
scalability in alignment with business needs along with the ability to backup new
applications and data as they are deployed.

Evaluation:
Omnia Partners competitively solicited and awarded a contract for software



Omnia Partners competitively solicited and awarded a contract for software
solutions and services.  The City has a current agreement with Omnia Partners
allowing for the cooperative use of their contracts.  The City has an existing linking
agreement with vCore Technology Partners.  The Omnia Partner's contract is valid
through April 30, 2023, with options to extend through April 30, 2025.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

403.1290.6315.0.0.0 Technology
Replacement

N/A $628,769 N



ITEM  14 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Rachelle Faherty, IT Applications Manager
Subject: Amendment No. 3 to Agreement No. 2564 for Accela Annual Maintenance

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. 2564, Amendment No. 3, with Accela,
Inc., for annual maintenance, in an amount not to exceed $674,686, for a
three-year period, beginning July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025, payable on an
annual basis.

Background/Discussion:
The Accela application is the system that manages the City's permitting and
inspection services, new installations for water meters, and impact fees.  The City
recently expanded the use of this product to include online plan submittal and
review.  This application is vital to City revenues and operations and must be kept
fully maintained and supported.  The maintenance and support provides technical
assistance, software fixes, security patches and application upgrades necessary
to operate and keep this system current.

Evaluation:
On August 10, 2017, City Council approved Amendment No. 2 with Accela, Inc.,
for annual maintenance of the permitting and inspections system, for a five-year
period.  Accela, Inc., has agreed to extend the agreement to include the next three
years, through June 2025, at the same terms, conditions and pricing.  Because
the system is proprietary, this maintenance is available only through Accela,
Inc. No other vendors are authorized to provide these maintenance services.

Financial Implications:



Financial Implications:
The annual cost for each of the three years is as follows:

Year One      $218,281     July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023
Year Two      $224,830     July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Year Three   $231,575     July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5419.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $674,686 N

Attachments
2564 Signed Amendment 3 



 
 

 

THIRD AMENDMENT 

TO 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

This Third Amendment (“Third Amendment”) is made and entered into as of July 1, 2022 (“Third 
Amendment Effective Date”), by and between ACCELA, INC. (“ACCELA”) whose address is 2633 
Camino Ramon, Suite 500, San Ramon, CA 94583 and the City of Chandler, Arizona (“Customer”), whose 
address is 55 North Arizona Place, Chandler, AZ, and amends that certain Maintenance Agreement, dated 
October 25, 2007, as firstly amended on March 30, 2012 and secondly amended on August 15, 2017, 
between ACCELA and Customer (“Agreement” or “MA”).  

 
WHEREAS, ACCELA and Customer wish to amend the Agreement, in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of this Third Amendment to the Agreement (“Third Amendment”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the meanings ascribed to 
them in the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, ACCELA and Customer agree that, with the exception of any agreements that are 
presently active under the Agreement, which remain in full force, this Third Amendment modifies the 
Agreement, between the parties commencing as of the Third Amendment Effective Date. 
  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein, and 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Section 2.1, “Term” of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the existing Section 2.1, 

“Term” and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

This MA is effective as of October 25, 2007, and will continue until June 30, 2025. Customer 

may elect to continue its maintenance coverage for additional annual terms by paying to 

Accela the fees associated with such terms when these are due. Should Customer fail to renew 

its maintenance coverage or pay the applicable fees, Accela reserves the right to withhold all 

support. If Customer resumes maintenance coverage after one or more periods without such 

coverage, Customer will pay an amount equivalent to one hundred ten percent (110%) of all 

maintenance fees attributable to the period(s) without coverage, as such fees are calculated 

based upon pricing in effect at the time of resumption of maintenance coverage. 

 

 

2. “Exhibit A” of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the existing “Exhibit A” and 

inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

 
Modification 

 
Effective July 1, 2022, the Year 1 Maintenance Fees are in the amount shown in the corresponding table 
below and will be due on July 1, 2022. 
 
 
 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 

(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Accela Citizen Access 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 1 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $0.04 244,393 $10,417.79 

Accela Land Management 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 1 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $951.83 155 $147,534.13 

Accela GIS Maintenance and 

Support 

Year 1 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $319.39 45 $14,372.55 

DocuSign Envelope ID: EB34EF38-90DC-49CB-8F0A-04568393D2D3

http://restorationrobotics.com/
http://restorationrobotics.com/


2 

Accela Mobile Office 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 1 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 12 $1,148.92 40 $45,956.89 

TOTAL: $218,281.36 

Effective July 1, 2023, the Year 2 Maintenance Fees are in the amount shown in the corresponding table 
below and will be due on July 1, 2023. 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 

(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Accela Citizen Access 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 2 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $0.04 244,393 $10,730.32 

Accela Land Management 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 2 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $980.39 155 $151,960.15 

Accela GIS Maintenance and 

Support 

Year 2 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $328.97 45 $14,803.73 

Accela Mobile Office 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 2 7/1/2023 6/30/2024 12 $1,183.39 40 $47,335.60 

TOTAL: $224,829.80 

Effective July 1, 2024, the Year 3 Maintenance Fees are in the amount shown in the corresponding table 
below and will be due on July 1, 2024. 

Services Year Start Date End Date Term 

(Months) 

Price Qty Net Total 

Accela Citizen Access 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 3 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $0.05 244,393 $11,052.23 

Accela Land Management 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 3 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $1,009.80 155 $156,518.96 

Accela GIS Maintenance and 

Support 

Year 3 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $338.84 45 $15,247.84 

Accela Mobile Office 

Maintenance and Support 

Year 3 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $1,218.89 40 $48,755.66 

TOTAL: $231,574.69 

3. Except as so amended, all other provisions of the Agreement and subsequent Amendments shall
remain unchanged.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused their duly authorized
representatives to execute, this First Amendment as of the First Amendment Effective Date. 

CITY OF CHANDLER, AZ ACCELA, INC. 

Signature: Signature: 

Name: Name: 

Date: Date: 

Accela, Inc. | 2633 Camino Ramon, San Ramon, CA 94583 | (925) 659-3200 
Confidential

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

ATTEST:

CITY CLERK

DocuSign Envelope ID: EB34EF38-90DC-49CB-8F0A-04568393D2D3

5/13/2022

Aaron Haggarty



ITEM  15 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Adrian Zamora, IT Service Desk Supervisor
Subject: Purchase of Professional Configuration Services for the IT Service Portal

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of professional configuration services for
the IT Service Portal, from SHI International, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners
Contract No. 2018011-02, in the amount of $35,921.

Background/Discussion:
The Information Technology (IT) Department uses an online service portal to
receive requests for service from system users and generate work order tickets.
The Department is working on upgrading the existing Ivanti ticketing system to a
new version called Ivanti Service Manager.  IT is in need of professional services
to help with the configuration of the Change Management module, which is
needed in order for the City to go live with the new Ivanti Service Manager.

Evaluation:
The City of Mesa, on behalf of Omnia Partners, competitively solicited and
awarded a contract for Information Technology solutions and services.  The City
has a current agreement with Omnia Partners allowing for the cooperative use of
its contracts.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded Y/N



403.1290.5219.0.0.0 Technology
Replacement Fund

N/A $19,938 N

101.1280.5814.0.0.0 General Fund N/A $15,983 N



ITEM  16 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 22-072
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
From: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - Chief Financial Officer
Subject: Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Budget Amendments

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve as presented the twenty-five one-time budget
amendments totaling $340,500 and three ongoing budget amendments totaling
$37,000 for a total of $377,500 using Council Contingency and authorize staff to
transfer appropriation from the Non-Departmental Council Contingency to the
respective Departments after final adoption of the FY 2022-23 Budget and Capital
Improvement Program (CIP).

Background/Discussion
The FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget includes one-time Council Contingency of
$350,000 and ongoing Council Contingency of $75,000 for a total of $425,000 for
use in the budget amendment process. The following items have been submitted
as FY 2022-23 budget and CIP amendments. Also included is a proposed motion
for each amendment item that identifies the amount and specific account names
and numbers to allow for individual budget amendments to be approved or
changed and ensure that there is a transparent record of the budget impact of the
amendment. It is not necessary to include the account numbers when reading the
motions, should they be approved individually.

Proposed Budget Amendments by Department:

City Clerk Department:

1.  Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the City Clerk Department for a study
on records retention and document authentication using blockchain technology.
(Councilmember Stewart).



(Councilmember Stewart).
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the City Clerk cost center, Other Professional Services
account (101.1030.5219) for a blockchain study.

2.  Provide one-time funding of $2,000 to the City Clerk Department for American
Sign Language (ASL) interpretation services (as needed). (Councilmember Harris)
Move to transfer $2,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the City Clerk cost center, Other Professional Services
account (101.1030.5219) for ASL interpretation services.

Community Services Department:
 
3.  Provide one-time funding of $20,000 to the Community Services Department
for tree removal/replacement at Hoopes Park. (Mayor Hartke and Councilmember
Orlando)
Move to transfer $20,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Park Maintenance and Operations cost center, Other
Professional Services account (101.4530.5219) for tree removal/replacement
at Hoopes Park.

4.  Provide one-time funding of $28,000 to the Community Services Department
for a Folley Park Interim Study which will serve as a preliminary study to gauge
residents’ interests on the upcoming remodel of Folley Park. (Councilmember
Orlando)
Move to transfer $28,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Parks Capital cost center, Other Professional Services
account, Folley Park/Pool Renovation Program (401.4580.5219.0000.6PR650)
for a Folley Park Interim Study.

5.  Provide one-time funding of $20,000 to the Community Services Department
for a For Our Parks Clean-Up Day where volunteers and staff focus on cleaning
up City parks and ball fields. (Councilmember Stewart)
Move to transfer $20,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Park Maintenance and Operations cost center, Other
Professional Services account (101.4530.5219) for a For Our Parks Clean-Up
Day.

6.  Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Community Services Department
for veterans activities to recognize Chandler veterans on holidays and throughout
the year. (Councilmembers Harris, Ellis, Orlando, and Stewart)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency



(101.1290.5924) to the Nature and Recreation Facilities cost center, Other
Professional Services account (101.4555.5219) for veterans activities to
recognize Chandler veterans on holidays and throughout the year.

Cultural Development Department:

7.  Provide one-time funding of $15,000 to the Cultural Development Department
for Museum Wayfinding Signage to easily direct guests to their various
destinations throughout the Museum campus. (Mayor Hartke, Councilmembers
Harris, Ellis, and Orlando)
Move to transfer $15,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Museum cost center, Other Equipment account
(101.4560.6419) for Museum Wayfinding Signage.

8.  Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Cultural Development Department
for Jazz Appreciation Month Expansion for the creation of two new programs to
serve downtown and the surrounding neighborhoods. (Councilmembers Harris
and Ellis)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Special Events cost center, Other Professional
Services account (101.4559.5219) for Jazz Appreciation Month Expansion.

9.  Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Cultural Development Department
for downtown benches that will serve as decorative and functional seating in the
Courtyard, a parklet at the corner of San Marcos Place and Commonwealth
Avenue in Downtown Chandler. (Councilmembers Harris and Ellis)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Downtown Redevelopment cost center, Other
Equipment account (101.1540.6419) for downtown benches.

10. Provide one-time funding of $15,000 to the Cultural Development Department
in partnership with local schools for a kids art project to engage local children and
students. (Councilmember Orlando)
Move to transfer $15,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Center for the Arts cost center, Other Professional
Services account (101.1100.5219) for a kid’s art project in partnership with
local schools.

11. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Cultural Development Department
for additional funding for the End Zone Experience to further enhance attendee
experience. (Councilmember Harris)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency



(101.1290.5924) to the Special Events cost center, Other Professional
Services account (101.4559.5219) for the End Zone Experience enhancement.

City Manager’s Department, Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Division:

12. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for DEI Mini-Grant funding which allows the City to fund up to 20
programs that provide diversity education to K-12 Chandler students. (Mayor
Hartke, Councilmembers Harris, Ellis, and Orlando)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Other Professional Services account
(101.1062.5219) for DEI Mini-Grant funding.

13. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for additional funding for Chandler Contigo. (Mayor Hartke,
Councilmembers Ellis, and Orlando)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Sponsorships/Donation account
(101.1062.5265) for Chandler Contigo.

14. Provide one-time funding of $12,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for Sister Cities. This initial funding would kick-start the program and
fundraising efforts, with the goal of the newly established board to create ongoing
fundraising opportunities in future years. (Mayor Hartke and Councilmember Lopez)
Move to transfer $12,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Other Professional Services account
(101.1062.5219) for Sister Cities funding.

15. Provide ongoing funding of $10,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for a First Ladies of Chandler event to recognize women’s contributions
to Chandler’s successes in coordination with International Women’s Day.
(Councilmembers Ellis and Harris)
Move to transfer $10,000 from ongoing General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Sponsorships/Donation account
(101.1062.5265) for the First Ladies of Chandler event in coordination with
International Women’s Day.

16. Provide one-time funding of $5,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, to support the International Film Festival to enhance the attendee
experience and link Sister Cities international efforts to the event.
(Councilmembers Ellis and Harris)
Move to transfer $5,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency



(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Sponsorships/Donation account
(101.1062.5265) for the International Film Festival.

17. Provide ongoing funding of $7,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for the Chandler Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr., event to highlight
the contributions of the African American community to Chandler.
(Councilmembers Harris and Ellis)
Move to transfer $7,000 from ongoing General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Other Professional Services account
(101.1062.5219) for the Dr. MLK, Jr. event.

18. Provide one-time funding of $5,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, for Mental Health Resources to support community-wide programs and
events geared to help children and adults who are struggling with mental health
issues of depression, anxiety, suicidal thoughts, and self-harm. (Councilmember
Harris)
Move to transfer $5,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Other Professional Services account
(101.1062.5219) for Mental Health resources to support events.

19. Provide one-time funding of $5,000 to the City Manager Department, DEI
Division, to support activities for the Juneteenth holiday. (Councilmembers Harris
and Ellis)
Move to transfer $5,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the DEI cost center, Sponsorships/Donation account
(101.1062.5265) for activities for Juneteenth.

City Manager’s Department, Economic Development Division:

20. Provide one-time funding of $7,500 to the City Manager’s Department,
Economic Development Division, to support the Start-Up Weekend event.
(Councilmember Stewart)
Move to transfer $7,500 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Economic Development cost center, Other
Professional Services account (101.1520.5219) for the Start-Up Weekend
event.

21. Provide one-time funding of $1,000 to the City Manager’s Department,
Economic Development Division, for Business Roundtables focusing on African
American, Women, and Hispanic owned businesses. (Councilmember Harris)
Move to transfer $1,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Economic Development cost center, Other



Professional Services account (101.1520.5219) for Business Roundtables.

City Manager’s Department, Facilities and Fleet Division:

22. Provide $74,000 to the City Manager’s Department, Facilities and Fleet
Division, for a Solar Car Charging Station Pilot Program. Funds will be used to
acquire a solar car charging station to be used to charge the City’s increasing
electric vehicle fleet. (Mayor Hartke, Councilmembers Ellis, and Orlando)
Move to transfer $74,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Fleet Services cost center, Motor Vehicles account
(101.1270.6310) for a Solar Care Charging station.

Fire Department:

23. Provide one-time funding of $30,000 to the Fire Department for the
rehabilitation of a Fire Support vehicle to be used as an incident cooling station
(Mayor Hartke, Councilmembers Ellis, and Orlando)
Move to transfer $30,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Fire Administration cost center, Motor Vehicles
account (101.2210.6310) for the rehabilitation of a Fire Support vehicle to be
used as an incident cooling station.

Neighborhood Resources Department:

24. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Neighborhood Resources
Department for a special event at Hoopes Park as a follow up to the Envision
Amberwood event. (Mayor Hartke and Councilmember Lopez)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Neighborhood Preservation cost center, Other
Supplies account (101.1061.5322) for a special event at Hoopes Park.

25. Provide one-time funding of $1,000 to the Neighborhood Resources
Department for Public Housing Senior holiday events. The Housing and
Redevelopment Division hosts annual holiday programs that serve approximately
50 Public Housing seniors from Kingston and Chandler’s family housing sites. This
request is for items not covered by donations or by the Division’s budget.
(Mayor Hartke, Vice Mayor Roe, and Councilmembers Orlando, Ellis, Stewart,
Lopez, and Harris)
Move to transfer $1,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Housing and Redevelopment cost center, Food and
Events account (101.4650.5312) for Public Housing Senior holiday events.



26. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Neighborhood Resources
Department for supplies for Chandler back-to-school events. (Councilmembers
Ellis and Harris)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Neighborhood Resources Administration cost center,
Other Supplies account (101.1060.5322) for back-to-school events.

Police Department:

27. Provide one-time funding of $10,000 to the Police Department for the
purchase of Human Trafficking Surveillance equipment. (Mayor Hartke,
Councilmembers Orlando, Ellis, Stewart, Lopez, and Harris)
Move to transfer $10,000 from one-time General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Criminal Investigations cost center, Equipment
Supplies account (101.2040.5321) for Human Trafficking Surveillance
equipment.

28. Provide ongoing funding of $20,000 to the Police Department for Human
Trafficking Officer Training. (Councilmembers Lopez and Stewart)
Move to transfer $20,000 from ongoing General Fund Council Contingency
(101.1290.5924) to the Operational Support cost center, Education and
Training account (101.2080.5814) for Human Trafficking Officer Training.

Proposed one-time amendments submitted total $340,500, and ongoing requests
total $37,000. If the full amount of appropriation is not used during the amendment
process, the remaining appropriation in the Council Contingency will be available
for Council to use during FY 2022-23, should the need arise. Future appropriations
from unallocated Council contingency funding requires a formal vote of the
Council. Council approval of the proposed budget amendments shall result in
transfer of the appropriation to department budgets and authorize staff to
implement at an administrative level the initiatives identified in the proposed
budget amendments.

Attachments
Amendment Summary 



Memo 
Item # Dept Amendment Item One-Time Ongoing Mayor/Councilmember(s)

#23 Fire Rehab Fire Support Vehicle to an Incident Cooling Station 30,000$      Mayor/Ellis/Orlando
#27 Police Human Trafficking Surveillance Equipment 10,000         Mayor/Ellis/Harris/Stewart/Lopez/Orlando
#28 Police Human Trafficking Police Training 20,000$    Lopez/Stewart
#3 Comm Serv Hoopes Park Tree Removal/Replacement 20,000         Mayor/Orlando

#24 Neighb Res Hoopes Park Special Event 10,000         Mayor/Lopez
#25 Neighb Res Public Housing Senior Holiday Events 1,000           Mayor/VM Roe/Harris/Ellis/Lopez/Orlando/Stewart
#12 City Mgr-DEI DEI Mini-Grant Funding 10,000         Mayor/Harris/Ellis/Orlando
#13 City Mgr-DEI Additional Funding for Chandler Contigo 10,000         Mayor/Ellis/Orlando
#7 Cultural Devl Museum Way Finding Signage 15,000         Mayor/Harris/Ellis/Orlando
#8 Cultural Devl Jazz Appreciation Month Expansion 10,000         Harris/Ellis
#4 Comm Serv Folley Park Interim Improvement Study 28,000         Orlando

#22 City Mgr-F&F Solar Car Charging Station (Pilot) 74,000         Mayor/Ellis/Orlando

#14 City Mgr-DEI Sister Cities 12,000         Mayor/Lopez
#10 City Clerk Blockchain Study 10,000         Stewart
#20 City Mgr-ED Start-Up Weekend Event 7,500           Stewart
#5 Comm Serv For Our Parks Clean-Up Day 20,000         Stewart

#10 Cultural Devl Kid's Art Projects in Partnership with Schools 15,000         Orlando
#15 City Mgr-DEI Ladies of Chandler Event in Coordination with Intl. Women's Day 10,000      Ellis/Harris
#26 Neighb Res Back to School Event/Supplies 10,000         Ellis/Harris
#16 City Mgr-DEI International Film Festival 5,000           Ellis/Harris
#6 Comm Serv Veteran's Recognitions on Veterans/Memorial Day 10,000         Harris/Ellis/Orlando/Stewart

#17 City Mgr-DEI MLK Event 7,000        Harris/Ellis
#21 City Mgr-ED Business Roundtables 1,000           Harris
#9 Cultural Devl Downtown Benches 10,000         Harris/Ellis

#18 City Mgr-DEI Mental Health Day 5,000           Harris
#11 Cultural Devl End Zone Experience enhancement 10,000         Harris
#19 City Mgr-DEI Juneteenth Event 5,000           Harris/Ellis
#2 City Clerk ASL Interpretive Services (as needed) 2,000           Harris

One-Time Ongoing
$377,500 Total Proposed Amendments $340,500 $37,000
$425,000 Total Council Contingency $350,000 $75,000
$47,500 Remaining Council Contingency $9,500 $38,000

FY 2022-23 City Council Proposed Budget Amendments



ITEM  17 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Sean Duggan, Police Chief
From: Doug Reed, Police Support Services Manager
Subject: Purchase of Property and Evidence Walk-In Freezer and Installation Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the utilization of Maricopa County Contract No.
171203, with Andrews Refrigeration, Inc., and City of Chandler Agreement No.
BF8-936-3802, with Western States Fire Protection Co., for the purchase of Police
Property & Evidence walk-in freezer and installation services, increasing the
spending limit by $16,500.00, for a revised amount not to exceed $72,538.12.

Background/Discussion:
The purchase and installation of an additional freezer at the Police Property &
Evidence facility was approved by City Council on February 24, 2022. While staff
was in the purchase process, the proposal expired. The vendor was unable to
extend the quote due to manufacturer price increases and volatile shipping costs.
City Council approval is requested for the increased spending limit of $16,500.00
for the additional amount. The Police Property & Evidence Unit receives, stores,
and disposes of items of evidence impounded by officers as allowed by law. There
are certain impounded items that must be kept frozen to preserve evidence. The
current evidence freezer is nearing capacity and an additional freezer is needed.

Evaluation:
On February 24, 2022, City Council approved Agreement No. BF8-936-3802,
Amendment No. 3, with Western States Fire Protection Co., for fire protection
services for the term of September 1, 2021, through August 2023, and the use of
Maricopa County's competitively solicited and awarded Contract No. 171203 with
Andrews Refrigeration, Inc., for installation services to install police property



evidence freezer. Staff is requesting an increase to the spending limit that was
previously approved. All other terms of the original agreement remain unchanged. 

Financial Implications:
Funding for this expenditure will be paid from the City's federal
AZCARES/American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) allocation.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program
Name

Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.2010.5818.5ARP.0.0General
Fund

N/A $16,500.00 N



ITEM  18 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. 2022-028
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Sean Duggan, Police Chief
From: Melanie Smith, Police Planning and Research Analyst 
Subject:Resolution No. 5588 Authorizing Acceptance of the Award of the Arizona

Criminal Justice Commission FY22 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental
Funding Program in the Amount of $60,545.25

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5588 authorizing acceptance of
the award of the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY22 Coronavirus
Emergency Supplemental Funding Program in the amount of $60,545.25, and
authorize the Chief of Police, as designated by the City Manager, to conduct all
negotiations and to execute and submit all documents necessary in connection
with such grant.

Background:
The Chandler Police Department was awarded $60,545.25 from the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) FY22 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental
Funding Award.  The Award provides funding to assist eligible state, local, and
tribal units of government responding to the novel coronavirus. The Police
Department applied for the funds to purchase AVON gas masks for police officers,
laptops for officer recruits, and software licenses for the awarded laptops.

Financial Implications:
None

Attachments
FY22 ACJC Contract 
Resolution 5588 



Resolution 5588 





























































ITEM  19 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA22-117
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: John Ardans, Utilities Maintenance Manager
Subject:Purchase of Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility Sludge Silo Platform

Installation Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of silo platform installation services, from
SDB, Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 18-15PV-12, in an amount not to
exceed $250,000.

Background/Discussion:
The Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility (OWRF), located at 3333 S. Old Price
Road, treats up to 18 million gallons per day of wastewater from the businesses
and residents of Chandler. Sludge handling is the final process completed at the
wastewater facility. During the sludge handling process, the residual sludge
collected from the treatment process is dewatered using several belt presses. The
dewatered sludge is stored in a silo for future hauling to the landfill. Currently,
maintenance access to the top of this silo is gained via a small narrow platform at
the top of the silo that is about 40 feet above the ground. This platform has been
deemed a potential safety risk due to its small size and height from ground level.  

In consultation with the designer and silo manufacturer, an engineered solution to
improve staff safety was designed.  Improvements will include a wider platform
and higher handrails, making for safe access while maintenance work is being
performed. SDB, Inc., has submitted a proposal utilizing the 1GPA job order
contracting process to demolish the existing access and install the new and
improved platform. This purchase will fund both the construction and installation of
the new safety platform.



Evaluation:
Paradise Valley Unified School District competitively solicited and awarded a
contract for general contractor services to SDB, Inc., on behalf of 1GPA. The City
has a current agreement with 1GPA allowing for the cooperative use of its
contracts. The 1GPA contract is valid through May 17, 2023.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

615.3970.5219.0.0.0 Wastewater
Operating

Other
Professional
Services

$250,000 N



ITEM  20 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE22-039
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Kimberly Moon, Capital Projects Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Manager
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5012 Authorizing the Abandonment of

a Drainage Easement No Longer Needed for Public Use

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5012 authorizing the
abandonment of a drainage easement no longer needed for public use
on property located at the northeast corner of Cooper and Germann roads.

Background:
On April 26, 2006, the City of Chandler received a Final Order of
Condemnation ("FOC") from Canyon Oaks Estates, L.P., that included a
temporary drainage easement located at the northeast corner of Cooper and
Germann roads (the “Easement”). The Easement obtained at this time was
subsequently reconfigured to accommodate the proposed development of
Chandler Airport Center as noted on the Final Plat for Chandler Airport Center
Phase I, recorded in Book 858, Page 9, Maricopa County Records. The property
that includes the Easement is undergoing further development and the current
developer is providing improvements that include permanent drainage facilities on
the property. For that reason, the Easement is no longer needed for public use
and the developer requests the City of Chandler abandon it.

Staff has reviewed and approved the request and legal description
for abandonment of the Easement.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on May 26, 2022.



Attachments
Ordinance No. 5012 
Location Map 



















ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

INTRODUCTION AND TENTATIVE ADOPTION OF
ORDINANCE NO. 5012 AUTHORIZING THE

ABANDONMENT OF A DRAINAGE EASEMENT
NO LONGER NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE ON
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST

CORNER OF COOPER ROAD AND GERMANN
ROAD, CHANDLER, ARIZONA

°
NTS

GERMANN RD

CO
OP

ER
 RD

EASEMENT

MEMO NO. RE22-039

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Real Estate\RE22-039 ORDINANCE 5012\RE22-039.mxd 4/5/2022 RANDYE

ORDINANCE 5012



ITEM  21 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE22-041
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Kimberly Moon, Capital Projects Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Manager
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5015 Authorizing the Abandonment of a

Temporary Access Easement

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5015 authorizing the
abandonment of a temporary access easement on property located at
the northeast corner of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant Drive.

Background:
The owner of the property located on the northeast corner of Chandler
Boulevard and Pleasant Drive (the “Property”) is in the process of subdividing the
land under the name of St. Moritz Townhomes, a replat of Tract D of Tyson Manor
Unit Four recorded in Book 223, Page 48, in the Maricopa County Recorder’s
Office (the “Plat”). The Property is currently encumbered by a temporary access
easement that was granted to the City of Chandler in 1992 for a fire truck
turnaround (the “Easement”). The owner will dedicate to the City a new
emergency ingress and egress easement to replace the existing Easement in
compliance with the requirements of the Plat (the “Dedication”). The developer has
requested the abandonment of the Easement after the City records the Dedication.

Staff reviewed the request and concurs that the Easement may be
abandoned after the City records the Dedication.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on May 26, 2022.



Attachments
Ordinance No. 5015 
Location Map 



ORDINANCE NO. 5015 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT OF A TEMPORARY 
ACCESS EASEMENT ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF CHANDLER BOULEVARD AND PLEASANT DRIVE. 

   
WHEREAS, Chandler Sunset LH, LLC (“Owner”) is in the process of subdividing property 
located at the northeast corner of Chandler Boulevard and Pleasant Drive (the “Property”) under 
the name of St. Moritz Townhomes, a replat of Tract D of Tyson Manor Unit Four recorded in 
Book 223, Page 48 in the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office (the “Plat”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is encumbered by a temporary access easement that was granted to the 
City of Chandler in 1992 and recorded as Maricopa County Recorder’s Document No. 1992-
0685428 (the “Easement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Owner will dedicate to the City of Chandler a new emergency ingress and egress 
easement as required by the Plat (the “Dedication”); and 
                           
WHEREAS, Owner requests that the City abandon the Easement after recording the Dedication 
as it will no longer be needed for public use. 
                                                             
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 

 
Section 1.  That the City of Chandler is authorized to abandon the Easement after recording 

the Dedication. 
 

Section 2. That the document used to abandon the Easement shall be in substantially the form 
approved by the City Attorney attached as Exhibit “A” and made a part of this 
Ordinance. 

 
Section 3. That the Mayor of the City of Chandler is hereby authorized to execute and deliver 

all documents necessary to abandon the Easement. 
 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
ATTEST:    
 
 
              
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 













ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

INTRODUCTION AND TENTATIVE ADOPTION
OF ORDINANCE NO. 5015 AUTHORIZING THE
ABANDONMENT OF A TEMPORARY ACCESS

EASEMENT NO LONGER NEEDED FOR PUBLIC
USE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF CHANDLER
BOULEVARD AND PLEASANT DRIVE

°
NTS

CHANDLER BL

PL
EA

SA
NT

 DR

EV
ER

GR
EE

N 
ST

TOLEDO ST TOLEDO ST

NEW
EMERGENCY
INGRESS AND
EGRESS
EASEMENT
TEMPORARY
ACCESS
EASEMENT TO
BE
ABANDONDED

MEMO NO. RE22-041

ORDINANCE 5015

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Real Estate\RE22-041 ORDINANCE 5015\RE22-041.mxd 4/18/2022 RANDYE



ITEM  22 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 22-069
       

Date: June 9, 2022
To: Mayor and Council

Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO

From: Matthew Dunbar, Budget and Policy Officer
Subject:Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2022-23 Annual Budget and 2023-2032

Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and Setting of Property Tax Levies

Background/Discussion
On, May 26, 2022, Council adopted Resolution No. 5586, which approved the FY
2022-23 Tentative Budget in the amount of $1,352,658,536 and set June 9, 2022,
as the date for a public hearing to allow taxpayers to comment and provide input
on the Budget, CIP and Property Tax Levies.  A Notice of Public Hearing for
“Adoption of the FY 2022-23 Annual Budget and 2023-2032 Capital Improvement
Program, and Setting of Property Tax Levies” has been posted on the official City
website since June 1, 2022, and published in the Arizona Republic on June 1 and
June 8, 2022, as required by State statute.  The notice includes a summary of the
Tentative Budget, with State Auditor General schedules (Budget forms) attached
and provides a general description of the 10-Year CIP. Council action on the
Budget and CIP is scheduled immediately following this Public Hearing on the
Budget, CIP and Property Tax Levies.  Action on the Property Tax Levies is
scheduled for June 23, 2022.

Attachments
Public Hearing PPT 



Council Chambers
Thursday, June 9, 2022

Public Hearing
2022-23 Proposed Budget

2023-2032 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
2022-23 Property Tax Levy



27.8% increase overall
$755M operating (+9.8%)
$597M capital (+61.2%)

22.7% increase in General Fund
Ongoing operating (+12%)

FY 2022-23
Proposed Budget 
“Staying Connected”

Total Budget $1,352,658,536
Total General Fund: $412,923,538

Proposed Budget
• Adheres to financial policies and is 

structurally balanced
• Uses Strategic Framework to guide 

decisions
• Provides for cost-effective, quality 

services
• Maintains long-term financial 

sustainability
• Engaged Residents through input 

opportunities
• Budget Survey, Kickoff, & Two Workshops
• Budget Advancement of Strategic 

Framework Outreach Videos
• All-day Budget Briefing
• Tentative and Final Adoption



Budget Increase Drivers

Revenues
• Prior 2 year’s budgets artificially low due to COVID
• Current budget did not reflect Intel expansion revenue impacts
• Increased revenues to reflect actual economic environment

Expenditures

• Inflation increasing operations ($3.6M) and capital (4%-7%) budgets
• Personnel costs increasing to invest in City workforce and retain employees; market, class and 

comp, and healthcare
• Capital projects increased to address aging infrastructure, bond authorized projects, and 

grant funded projects
• Includes $119M in projects for infrastructure to support Intel expansion

Grants

Debt

• Includes $34.6M in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds included in FY 2022-23 budget as 
carryforward

• Enhance technology capabilities to assist with mobility, security and cloud-based solutions 
using AZCares; requiring additional ongoing resources to maintain

• Additional one-time payments to continue planned paydown of PSPRS unfunded liability



Operating Budget Highlights

Slight reduction of City 
property tax rate, no 

change to Transaction 
Privilege Tax (TPT) rates, 

and no new fees

Anticipate Water, 
Wastewater, and Solid 
Waste rate changes as 

they were delayed from 
prior year

Budget maintains existing 
service levels and 

enhances  programs tied 
to Strategic Framework

Adds funding for labor 
association commitments 

and general employee 
merit/market

Plans towards debt 
reduction: $50M in one-

time funding for pay-
down of Public Safety 
Personnel Retirement 

System (PSPRS) liability

Maintains strong reserves 
(includes 15% General 

Fund contingency reserve 
and $10M budget 

stabilization reserve)



• Continued emphasis on maintaining aging 
infrastructure

• Updated to reflect inflationary pressures

• Includes $119M in projects for infrastructure to 
support Intel expansion

• Continues to fund requested projects, such as:
• Police Forensic Lab facility
• All phases of Mesquite Groves Park
• Fiber upgrades
• Tumbleweed Expansion/Multi-Gen Facility
• Airport improvements/Cooper Rd. extension

2023-2032 
CIP Highlights

$1.66B- Total 10-Year CIP
$597.4M – Total FY 2022-23 CIP



Public Hearing
2022-23 Property Tax Levy



Breakdown of $1 of Typical Chandler Property Tax Bill

City of Chandler 
10.2 cents

Public Schools and 
Community College 

Districts 
66.9 cents

Maricopa County 
& Special Districts

22.9 cents

*Based on 2021 Tax Bill information. Exact split will vary depending on the 
school district and any other special taxing districts on the bill.



FY 2021-22 LPV
$3.464B

2021-22 Levy
$38,538,200

FY 2022-23 LPV
$3.703B

2022-2023 Levy
$40,828,804

+6.9% increase
5.4% New Property
1.5% Appreciation

Levy Increase
$2,290,604

FY 2022-23 Property Tax Levy

Tax rate reduction from $1.1126 to $1.1026
reduces impact of Limited Property Value (LPV) increase



9

Impact of City Tax Rate Reduction 
on Median Value Homeowner



Budget Event Date
Council Budget Kickoff Completed Oct.

Citizen Budget Survey Completed Dec.

Council Workshop #1 Completed Feb.

Budget Advancement of Strategic Framework Outreach Videos Completed Mar.

Council Workshop #2 Completed Mar.

All Day Budget Briefing Completed Apr.

Council Meetings 
and Statutory 
Requirements

Tentative Budget/CIP Adoption Completed May

Public Hearing and Final Adoption Tonight

Adoption of Tax Levy 06/23/2022

Key Budget Dates



For your consideration:
Res. #5590 Adopts the FY 2022-23 Annual 
Budget, sets the amounts proposed to be 
raised by direct property taxation, and 
Adopts the 2023-2032 Capital 
Improvement Program

Questions?

City Council final vote on Property Tax 
Levy June 23, 2022

For more information visit 
chandleraz.gov/budget
or call the Budget Office at (480) 782-2252


	Agenda
	1__May 2022 Council Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_Minutes of the Work Session of May 23, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Study Session of May 23, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Work Session of May 26, 2022
	       ATT_Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 26, 2022
	2__Board and Commission Appointments
	3__Purchase EditShare Equipment
	4__Resolution 5589 Enhanced Municipal Services District EMSD Agreement FY 2022 2023 Downtown Chandler Community Partnership dccp
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5589
	RESOLUTION NO.  5589
	CERTIFICATION

	       ATT_City of Chandler and DCCP Contract
	       ATT_Contract Exhibit A_ DCCP Boundary Map
	       ATT_Contract Exhibit B_ DCCP Operating Plan
	       ATT_Contract Exhibit C_ City Services Provided Downtown
	       ATT_DCCP Insurance Certificate
	5__Agreement ED8-920-3876 Amendment 4 Simpleview LLC Search Engine Optimization Pay Per Click Services
	       ATT_Amendment
	6__Purchase Doors Locking Systems Door Hardware Operable Walls
	7__Sole Source Purchase Beam Global Electric Vehicle EV ARC 2020 Solar Powered EV Charging Stations
	8__Resolution 5587 Education Services Agreement amendment 1 Dignity Health paramedic neonatal resuscitation educational services
	       ATT_Resolution 5587
	       ATT_First Amendment
	9__Purchase Enterprise Asset Management EAM System Annual Support Maintenance
	10__Purchase Oracle Annual Support Maintenance
	11__Agreement IT1-918-4343 Amendment 1 Business License Portal Applications Managed Support Services
	       ATT_Agreement
	12__Purchase Network Infrastructure Equipment
	13__Purchase Data Backup Recovery Infrastructure Expansion
	14__Agreement 2564 Amendment 3 Accela Annual Maintenance
	       ATT_2564 Signed Amendment 3
	15__Purchase Professional Configuration Services Information Technology IT Service Portal
	16__FY 2022 2023 Budget Amendments
	       ATT_Amendment Summary
	FINAL

	17__Purchase Property Evidence Walk-In Freezer and Installation Services
	18__Resolution 5588 Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY22 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding program award
	       ATT_FY22 ACJC Contract
	       ATT_Resolution 5588
	19__Purchase Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility OWRF Sludge Silo Platform Installation Services
	20__ Ordinance 5012 Abandonment Drainage Easement NEC Cooper Rd Germann Rd
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5012
	       ATT_Location Map
	21__Ordinance 5015 Abandonment Temporary Access Easement NEC Chandler Blvd Pleasant Dr
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5015
	Law Revised ORD. 5015
	Ordinance 5015

	       ATT_Location Map
	22__Public Hearing Tentative FY 2022 2023 Budget 2023 2032 CIP FY 2022 2023 Tax Levy
	       ATT_Public Hearing PPT
	Slide Number 1
	FY 2022-23�Proposed Budget 
	Budget Increase Drivers
	Operating Budget Highlights
	2023-2032 �CIP Highlights�
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	FY 2022-23 Property Tax Levy
	Impact of City Tax Rate Reduction �on Median Value Homeowner
	Key Budget Dates
	For your consideration:�Res. #5590 Adopts the FY 2022-23 Annual Budget, sets the amounts proposed to be raised by direct property taxation, and Adopts the 2023-2032 Capital Improvement Program��


		2022-05-16T15:29:14-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2022-05-27T14:01:55-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2022-05-13T14:35:19-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




